
American Disability Act (ADA) Accommodations Provided Upon Request 

 
 
 

AGENDA   
Regular Meeting of the Pierce County Library System Board of Trustees 

January 9, 2013 
 3:30 – 6:00 pm

 
3:30 pm 02 min. Call to Order:  Linda Ishem, Chair  
    
3:32 pm 05 min. Public Comment:  This is time set aside for members of the public to speak to the Board of Trustees.  Unless the item you wish to 

discuss is of an emergency nature, the Board ordinarily takes matters under advisement before taking action.  Please sign up at the 
time of the meeting to speak during the public Comment period, and limit your comments to three minutes. 

    
3:37 pm 03 min. Consent Agenda  Action 
    1.  Approval of Minutes of the December 12, 2012 Regular Meeting  
    2.  Approval of December 2012 Payroll, Benefits and Vouchers   
    
3:40 pm 10 min. Board Members Report  
    
3:50 pm 15 min. Officers Reports  
    1.  November Dashboard, Georgia Lomax   
    2.  December 2012 Financial Report, Dale Hough  
    3.  2013 Legislation of Interest to Libraries, Neel Parikh  
    4.  University Place Condominium Fees, Neel Parikh  
    5.  PLA Webinar, Mary Getchell  
    6.  Paul Allen Grant, David Durante  
    
  Unfinished Business  
4:05 pm 20 min.   1.  Paper Management System, Sally Porter Smith  
    
  New Business  
4:25 pm 30 min.   1.  2012 Operational Changes for Efficiencies and Savings, Georgia Lomax  
4:55 pm 30 min.   2.  2013 Board Calendar of Work, Neel Parikh  
5:25 pm 30 min.   3.  Core Skills and Qualities, Holly Gorski  
     
5:55 pm 00 min. Executive Session:  At this time on the agenda, the Board of Trustees will recess to Executive Session, per RCW 42.30.110, to 

discuss  

    
5:55 pm 05 min. Announcements  
    
6:00 pm  Adjournment         

 

 



 



Minutes of December 12, 2012 Regular Meeting   Page 1 

 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
PIERCE COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM 
REGULAR MEETING, DECEMBER 12, 2012 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

 
Chair Linda Ishem called to order the regular meeting of the Pierce County Rural Library District Board of 
Trustees December 12, 2012, 3:32 pm.  Board members present were Robert Allen, J.J. McCament, 
Allen Rose and Donna Albers.  Chair Ishem welcomed Ms. Albers to the Board of Trustees. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
There was no public comment. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 
1. Minutes of the November 14, 2012 Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees 
2. November 2012 Payroll, Benefits and Vouchers in the total amount of $2,249,604.51 

a. Payroll Warrants 3367 - 3374, dated 11/01/12 – 11/30/12 in the amount of $3476.96 
b. Payroll Disbursement Voucher dated 11/06/12 in the amount of $572,629.05 
c. Payroll Disbursement Voucher dated 11/21/12 in the amount of $746,661.82 
d. Accounts Payable Warrants 619065 - 619266 dated 11/01/12 – 11/30/12 in the amount of 

$926,836.68 
3. Resolution 2012-12:  Cancellation of Unredeemed Warrants 
4. Approval of Purchase of Print Management Software   

 
Ms. McCament moved for approval of the consent agenda.  Mr. Allen seconded the motion and it was 
passed.  
 

BOARD MEMBER REPORT 

 
J. J. McCament:  Ms. McCament reported that she recently attended an event and spoke with Judge 
Patrick O’Malley who showed her that he still has his Library card from 1985.  It reminded her of the 
campaign “What’s in YOUR Wallet” and suggested it may be a good slogan for our next Card Drive. 
 
Linda Ishem: Chair Ishem attended the 16th Combat Air Brigade reception hosted by the City of 
University Place.  It was a well-attended event held in the atrium of the Civic/Library building.  The space 
was beautifully decorated with holiday lights and many people enjoyed the outdoor fireplace.  Also in 
attendance were Executive Assistant Storm Reyes, Customer Experience Manager Jennifer Patterson 
and UP Branch Manager Lynne Zeiher.  Ms. Reyes noted it was interesting that folks kept trying to use 
the Library during the event.   
 

OFFICER REPORT 

 
1.  October 2012 Dashboard:  Ms. McCament commented that it was nicely done and was happy to see 
the Foundation figures included since they are a revenue source.  Chair Ishem asked what matrix was 
used for the philanthropy report.  Ms. Lomax stated that it was the year-to-date donors and monthly 
donors.  On the next Dashboard, the scale will be changed to begin with zero to match the scale of the 
other statistics.  Mr. Allen also asked that instead of listing the dates that branches are closed, to show 

 



Minutes of December 12, 2012 Regular Meeting   Page 2 

the number of actual days it is closed.  Ms. Parikh noted that the Foundation is trying to build up the 
number of regular donors.  Ms. Lomax offered to provide a definition list of the items listed in the report 
and to show the actual number of days each branch was closed rather than a range of dates. 
 
2.  November Financial Reports:  Ms. Parikh noted that the property tax revenue for 2012 has been 
received.  Finance Manager Dale Hough informed the Board that the November Financial Report sent to 
the Board did not include $775,000 in revenue as the figures arrived from Pierce County after the report 
was generated.  Ms. Parikh reminded the Board that the budget is based on the tax certificate received 
from the county.  She stated that the Library does not budget all of the revenue noted on the certification 
because it is assumed there will be delinquencies. 
 
3. Library Card Drive:  Mary Getchell reported that the Library welcomed a record 10,555 new card 
holders during the Library’s sixth annual Library Card Drive in October. In a typical month approximately 
4,000 people get cards. Following the card drive a record 273,789 people have Pierce County Library 
cards. A total of 5278 cards have gone out to the Franklin Pierce school district students as part of a pilot 
program aimed at getting a card into the hands of every student who did not already have one.  Ms. 
Parikh mentioned that the Superintendent said this is the 2nd most important event taking place in his 
district.   PCLS is in talks with another school district for possible implementation next year. 
 
4.  ALA Conference:  Ms. Parikh shared information on the American Library Association Midwinter 
Conference which will be held in Seattle in January 2013 and encouraged the members to attend.  She 
added that there are a lot of authors in attendance and she highly recommends that the Board visit the 
exhibits.  Packets were provided to the Board that highlighted tour offerings, programs, lectures and 
receptions.    

 

5.  Star Libraries:  Ms. Lomax shared the annual Library Journal article announcing the 2012 “Star 

Libraries”. The report is one of a number of reports PCLS follows to assess trends in services and use. 
For the past five years the publication has scored public libraries on four measurements that are 
gathered annually by the Institute of Museum and Library Services. Libraries are divided into categories 
based on the size of their budget. The top libraries in each category earn three, four or five stars. The 
2012 report is based on 2010 data. 
 
There were a total of 9,225 public libraries in 2010. 7570 of them provided data, and only those libraries 
that provide all four measurements are rated. Forty-four of Washington’s 62 public libraries were included 
in the rankings this year. 

 
Ms. Lomax noted this report is meant to be real, hard data that can actually be counted. She also noted 
that a trend in all libraries is the customers move to use of handheld devices and Wi-Fi. 
 
Ms. Parikh was pleased to report that the Fife Library was included in a separate Library Journal 
architectural article. 
 

6.  eBook Publisher Update:  Ms. Getchell stated some publishers are responding back to the 

emails and postcards sent to them from PCLS patrons and staff as a result of the Scrooge 
campaign.  McMillan has responded stating they are trying to work on the problem.  Penguin will open 
availability in April 2013 but with severe restrictions. The Library is continuing the media coverage.  Ms. 
McCament commented that she felt the campaign is having some impact across the nation.   
 
The Urban Library Council included an example of 'stellar local leadership' and noted the efforts of 
PCLS.  Mary Getchell and Lisa Bitney will participate in a Public Library Association webinar discussing 
the campaign.   
 



Minutes of December 12, 2012 Regular Meeting   Page 3 

7.  Busiest Public Library Branches:  Four Pierce County Library System locations (South Hill, Gig 
Harbor, University Place and Parkland/Spanaway) were included in a recently published list of the 
busiest public library branches in the state. 
 
8.  Collection HQ Article:  PCLS was highlighted in a recent article by Collection HQ, the software 
company that is providing a new system for the Library that helps it manage its collection. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING - 2013 BUDGET 

 
Mr. Rose moved that in accordance with RCW 85.44.120, the public hearing be opened for consideration 
of increases in property tax revenues, regarding 2012 property tax levies for collection in 2013. The 
motion was seconded by Ms. McCament and passed. 
 
Chair Ishem asked if there was anyone in the audience who would like to comment on the budget. There 
was no response. 
 
There being no comments, Ms. McCament moved to close the public hearing on the 2013 budget of 
estimated revenue and expenditures. The motion was seconded by Mr. Allen and passed. 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

 
1.  2013 Budget:  Clifford Jo shared the draft 2013 budget narrative document with the Board. He noted 
that this version incorporates all budget decisions made thus far, including the revisions to cash flow 
management. The final narrative, published in January, will include final revisions to the strategic 
framework section, 2012 “Our Own Expression” submissions (poetry, drawings and art, and 
photography).  He also noted that numbers may change slightly should Pierce County forward revenue 
changes.  In January, Ms. Lomax will bring to the Board a report on efficiencies to show what 
management and staff have done by using better tools and processes.   
 
Ms. McCament praised Mr. Jo for a job well done and the comprehensiveness of the budget document.  
She appreciated the work that was done and stated it is sobering to know that the Library has cut the 
budget nearly $10M in the past 4-5 years and is still keeping the same level of service.  Mr. Rose added 
that showing the pattern of cuts and maintenance of service will add to the public’s understanding of the 
revenue reductions.  Mr. Allen stated that he would like the narrative to include the discussions on how 
the decisions were reached, adding that it is a great deliberate and analytical process.   

 
Resolution 2012-13, To Transfer a Portion of the Fund Balance of the General Fund to the  
Capital Improvements Fund: Ms. McCament moved for approval of Resolution 2012-13, to transfer a 
portion of the fund balance of the general fund to the capital improvement fund.  Mr. Rose seconded the 
motion and it passed.  
 
Resolution 2012-14, To Adopt the 2013 Budget of Estimated Revenue and Expenditures:  Mr. Rose 
moved for approval of Resolution 2012-14, to adopt the 2013 budget of estimated revenue and 
expenditures.  Mr. Allen seconded the motion and it passed. 

 
Resolution 2012-15, To Adopt the 2013 Capital Improvement Budget:  Mr. Allen moved for approval 
of Resolution 2012-15, to adopt the 2013 capital improvement budget.  Ms. McCament seconded them 
motion and it passed. 
 
2.  Naming:  Ms. Lomax reported that the Administrative Team and Development Director have recently 
reviewed the current Naming policy to ensure it reflected the intent of the Board as discussed in 
November, and will bring revisions to the Board for approval.  In particular, procedures will be included to 



Minutes of December 12, 2012 Regular Meeting   Page 4 

clarify naming related to capital campaign donor opportunities. She also provided the Board with a list of 
areas which are currently named within the Library system. 
 
Development Director Lynne Hoffman announced that the Early Learning area in the Lakewood branch 
will be named in honor of Steve Albers. 
 
The Library Foundation has received all pledged gifts in support of the University Place Library 
Campaign. In accordance with the PCLS Board Policy 3.16, Ms. Hoffman requested approval by the 
Board of the named areas at the branch.   
 
Ms. McCament moved to approve the named areas in the University Place Library.  Mr. Rose seconded 
the motion and it was passed. 
 

NEW BUSINESS  

 
1.  Pierce County Library Foundation Annual Report:  Ms. Parikh introduced Foundation President 
Michael Gordon who has been the chair for the past 2 years.  Mr. Gordon stated he was pleased to 
report to the Board some of the ways in which the Foundation supported the Library in 2012.   They 
include book club kits, annual commitments for summer reading and online resume coaching through 
Jobs Now.  He informed the Board that they gained three times as many new donors than in the previous 
year, that there are over 1000 active donors and that 86% of the donors renewed in 2012.  Mr. Gordon 
also invited the Board members to consider attending a Foundation Board meeting as well as attending 
the PC Reads reception which will be held in May 2013. 
 
Ms. Hoffman highlighted the importance of the Foundation Board of Trustees.  She commented that they 
regularly hand write thank you notes to donors and make phone calls inviting the public to attend events. 
 
Ms. Hoffman introduced the recently hired Development Associate, Julie Kramer.  Ms. Kramer shared 
her background and stressed her eagerness to work on grant writing and various fund raising 
opportunities for the Library.  She also encouraged the Board members to pass along funding 
opportunities to her. 
 
Ms. Hoffman shared the Annual Report with the Board and noted that unrestricted giving continues to 
grow.  She stated that 5-year giving totals $1.5M. 
 
Chair Ishem and the Board members thanked the Foundation and shared their appreciation for the extra 
work they do on behalf of the Library.  Mr. Allen asked about the current state of the grant climate.  Ms. 
Hoffman stated that it was more difficult in years past and that Ms. Kramer will be forging new ground.  
She also noted that she is awaiting a response from two major grants totaling over $200K. 
 
 
2.  Block Play: Customer Experience Manager Judy Nelson provided an overview of the new Block Play 
project.   Block play is a research based learning method in early childhood education. Children use 
blocks to recreate experiences that they have had. They also use blocks to control and manage their 
environment. Ms. Nelson demonstrated that block play itself has developmental stages that children 
must move through. It begins with the tote and carry stage, followed by beginning to build, bridging with 
blocks, creating enclosures and finally representational building. Each of these stages is enhanced by 
the child to child (peer to peer) communication that occurs and the child/adult interaction. These 
connections lead to both enhanced social emotional development and language acquisition. Block play is 
a developmental tool that allows children and families to not only increase their language and literacy 
skills but also to begin to develop early math and science concepts. It has been shown to be effective in 
increasing early childhood language skills. Block play is also instrumental in STEM development in early 



Minutes of December 12, 2012 Regular Meeting   Page 5 

learning. STEM stands for science, technology, engineering and math and has been identified as a 
significant focus area for children of all ages. 
 
This project positions the Pierce County Library as a relevant community partner in early education.  
Starting in January, each library site will host a monthly block program for their ECEAP/Head Start 
partner. Along with these events, there will be two trainings for library staff and ECEAP/Head Start 
teachers. The first training will include how to observe and record children’s behavior using observation 
techniques that are part of Teaching Strategies GOLD (the required assessment tool for WA Kids). The 
training will also include how to scaffold children’s play to help them move through the stages when it is 
appropriate. Each ECEAP/Head Start program involved will be provided with suggested block play 
activities for use in their sites, as well as 18 sets of blocks to be distributed to each family to use at home. 
Each month families will be asked about their block play at home. ECEAP/Head Start sites evaluate their 
children three times during the year. Using the existing tools we will observe and assess the changes to 
the children’s play during the monthly library event. 
 
To begin engaging the greater community, each library will also host an open block play event for the 
community once a month and participants will sign in and share whether or not this was their first time 
attending or not. Librarians will observe the overall room for block play skills.  
 
Ms. Nelson praised the Foundation for funding the program.  She added that all centers have been set 
up and the first training session has taken place for Librarians and ECEAP trainers.  The Library will also 
be applying to Public Library Association (PLA) to do a program at an upcoming conference. 
 
In response to a question concerning what outcomes are being tracked, Ms. Nelson stated that the 
children will be assessed 3 times per year.  This project will conclude in June 2013 and final results will 
be released in the fall. 
 
3.  Strategic Framework:  Ms. Parikh introduced the strategic framework used to identify priorities for 
decision making.  The framework is based on the Library’s core documents, standards developed by the 
Library over the past few years, and information from the 2012 community survey.  She stressed that the 
framework is to be used as a template for making service and operational decisions. It will assist the 
Library in setting goals and further develops the balanced scorecard.   
 
Mr. Allen asked how the framework would be applied in a decision making setting.  Ms. Parikh noted that 
there are only so many things libraries can do and PCLS needs to explore what it will do from the frame 
of this document.  It will aid librarians in deciding what they should implement.  It will also allow the 
Library to re-evaluate.  The document can be used to provide a metric.  Ms. Lomax added that the 
Library is in a place where it needs to make choices and be purposeful.  This framework will aid in that 
process. 
 
Chair Ishem commented that it brings all the disparate pieces into conversation with each other.  Mr. 
Allen added that he would like the elements to be mutually exclusive and that the principles and tools 
should not have the same verbiage. 
 
Ms. Parikh thanked the members for their feedback and would take the suggestions into consideration as 
she continued to develop the document. 
 
4.  Insurance Renewal:   Clifford Jo notified the Board that the Library is in the process of renewing its 
insurance policy for 2013.  The premium has increased considerably due to earthquake/flood insurance.  
Rather than drop the coverage completely, he has reduced the limit from $15M to $10 M, resulting in a 
reduction to the premium of $6506.  He also recommended adding Cyber coverage to the policy since 
the Library has over 425 PCs offered to the public and the potential exposure is great.  
 



Minutes of December 12, 2012 Regular Meeting   Page 6 

When questioned on how he decided what the appropriate level of coverage would be, Mr. Jo stated that 
he relies on the insurance carriers and looks at the Library’s claims history and record.  Mr. Rose 
suggested that the Library conduct a risk assessment by a specialist. 
 
Ms. McCament moved to approve the renewal of the 2013 insurance policy.  Mr. Rose seconded the 
motion and it was approved. 
 
5.  Resolution to set non-represented employee wages and benefits for 2013:  Holly Gorski, Staff 
Experience Director, asked the Board for approval of a resolution to set the non-represented staff wages 
and benefits for 2013.  The proposal is to set the wages at 2.43% above those of 2012 and the Library 
pay for employee-only health insurance premiums at a maximum of $689.74 for medical, dental, vision 
and basic life insurance. 
 
Ms. Albers commented that the health plan is very rich and to peg the contributions to the prior year’s is 
rare.  Ms. Gorski shared the background of the Library’s health plans with the Board.   
 
Ms. McCament moved to approve the Resolution 2013-16, to set 2013 wages for non-represented 
employees.  Mr. Allen seconded the motion and it passed. 
 
6.  Election of Officers:  Ms. McCament moved to vote to maintain the current leadership with Linda 
Ishem serving as Chair and Allen Rose as Vice-Chair.  Mr. Allen seconded the motion and it passed. 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
At 5:50 pm, Mr. Allen moved to enter into executive session as per RCW 42.30.110 for 25 minutes for 
discussion of personnel matters.   Ms. McCament seconded the motion and it passed. The session was 
extended by 20 minutes and reopened to the public at 6:45 pm. 
 

OLD BUSINESS CONTINUED 

 
7.  2013 Executive Director Agreement:  Mr. Allen moved to authorize Chair Ishem to implement a 
2013 salary agreement with the Executive Director.   Mr. Rose seconded the motion and it passed.   
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
There were no announcements. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:47 pm on motion by Ms. McCament seconded by Mr. Allen.  
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________     _______________________________________ 
Neel Parikh, Secretary    Linda Ishem, Chair   
 



-{
>

oo
ll

B
fis

gE
=

; 
c 

c 
o

=
ui

ui
-

gs
 s

 F
o"

9 
o 

I
<

*+
0)

&
ss

d
(u

E
C

<
o 

o
<

.=
=

oo
o

g)
r

I 
!ll

iri
 O

 0
)

qq !o
 P

o

oo oo !]C oq
)

o 
fl)

uo oo

t> l=
ie

6 
li

-\
t 
cr

r 
19

A
 

N
){

f, 
IL

-5
 -

(n
 -(

, 
lf

(,
r(

o
@

o(
o

:.J
 N

 :.
J

O
-.

t@
-{

(o
@

ll*
lu

ll 
..r

 lo
ll 

..,
 l(

o
llI

 l9
)

llN
l(o

llo
lo

)

tr
, o o o ) E
T o N o N ! q, -g tr o o =
t' o 0, C
L o o o a

o)
 

lE

E
 $

li
i 

sl
=

I 
sl

l
(o

 
lo

(,
 

la

N
) 

N
J

oo i\N
i 

IH
N

) 
O

 
t;.

+
' 

Jo
)' 

lO

N
ilG

N
 9

(,
 

(,

N
N



l! l3 ls l- ls ls li t: ls l$ ll R t4 lI F lS

1' o E q) o o- @ :{

o f =
. a I g f io

@ q, 1 - z

N
J

O
\o

\]
c'

1
l.J

(D C o o m --
{ 28 c,
C

t1 z< 6\ m
1,

O
m

ln
 A

)
T

O >
m v -l m z {

o) (o -.
1

o) @ !
o) (o _.

1

o, (o .-
t

o, (o .-
,1

c'
,

(o -.
t

o, (o --
l

o) (o --
l

--
t

(o --
l

o) @ -{
o) (o -{

o, (o ._
l

o, (o _.
t

o, --
t

o) !

'T
t

C l o,

o o o C f o o o- o

o f o o - z 9

o o
o o

O o
o o

o o
o o

o o
o o

o o
o

o
c) o

o o
o

o o
o o !

o o o o
o o o o

o o o o
o o o o

o o o o
o o o o

o o o o
o o o

o o o
o o o o

o o o o
o o o o

o o o o
o o o o

o o o
o o o o

! o (o

tr 9) --
l d 0) ao c a

a c o o- -{ o

N ol {
N (, --

l
N (, --

l
N (, !

N (, -{
N (, {

N (, --
l

N (, -{
N (/

) {
N (, ._

l
N

) (, --
l

N (, -{
N C

,) .tl
N

) (, -'.
t

N (r
j -{

N (, --
l

ul a c @

o o
o o

o o
o o

o
o o

o o
o o

o o
o o

o o
o o

o o
o o

o
o o

m o 3 o @
(- 8s =

(,
-{

o 
=

d:
;

-S
o

-.
t 

!2
 I

5h
6 f,r

f
o-

o I
N

O
(J

l
N o N

@ o) l - z

o gl E
A

og f

! E o o o- G
' 5

o , =
. a + g f lo

o o o x z I

-{ o -{ t-

E
l

(D
l

o,
 I

ar
l

o E c = o o o, ; 3 d o 6- l{ t5 to lr lo tt- la lo lo
r l= l9 lo
r l8 lo lc la

@ o c) o o ; o) tf l(D lf

@ o o

- C
N m 3 p_ o o o a o- o o C o * o Lf lo

- o O
J o, (D lf F t(

D l= lo l-

l! o) m v o) f o- o q o o) o =d o v a

l! o 0, m m q) f o o e o o) o =o o n a

l -{ m m =7 m o v a

lo l(D l9 lo ll lo

a v o m ll =
r o o o o C 3 g 0) T
D q) l x.

lt o A
} m n 0) l o o lo ta
t

lo
)

ta I l= le t* lo t_ ln la

l! o q, m m q) = o o o- lo to
)

l(D t, IE t=
'

l(D la t_ la la

I { m m o f o m o E d o n a

o m U
) o n ! -t o z

o o (n

to o f o z 9

<
t, c o o

N
A (n
<

i, 
g,

6(
D

JO
-

N

I (- o o) o

N (,
t N o N

--
{ o

{r
}

gr N ul o N (0
I o

9 o

s, o { 9o 5 ol
t., o

b o
o b

I
I o

I o o

(o -o
l ie

N
J N @ i.o !

N
.,

_(
o { (,
r P

ct
l o { io 00

o C z. I

I (- z I

o N o o) N o N ! o o o ro i.



It lt ls li l; li ls lS
. II t: ls l-. t:. t: R tb t+ Ir ts lu ls IE ls l,\ IN IS l'\ l\J

tl o E o) o o- @ -*
1

o f =
. a -{ g f, 3c

@ o) f, - z 9

t)
\o

!
t-

)
ID C o o m --

{ 28 c,
C

t4 z< zY o" m
'I]

-m H
l

-o
O

>
m

a --
{ m z --
l

o) (o -{
o) \l

o) (o .-
,1

o) (o -\
l

o) (o -{
o) (o ..1

o) (o -{
o) (o -{

o) (o -{
o) (o -{

o, (o -.
1

o) --
l

c'
)

(o _.
1

o) (o --
l

o (o --
l

o
T E f

o o o c f o o o- o

o = o o - z 9

o o
o o

o o
o o

o o
o o

o o
o o

o o
o o

o
o o

o o
o

o o
c C

c o E

o o o o
o o o o

o o o
o o o o

o o o o
o o o o

o o o o
o o o o

o o o o
o o o o

o o o o
o o o o

o o o o
o o o o

o o o
C c C c

-I o (o

tr 9) --
{ d o) a c a

o o c o o- -t o

N (,
)

--
l

N (, --
l

N (, --
l

N (, --
t

N (, -{
N (, .{

N
) (, {

N (, -.
1

N (, !
N (, !

N (, -{
N (, {

N
)

(,
)

-'.
t

N (,
r -{

N ()
,

-.
.J

N (J
,) \

II U c u

o o
o o

o o
o

o o
o <

)
o o

o
o o

o o
o o

o o
o

o o
o o

C C
rI o 3 C u

L 3s =
a

+
o)

:
d:

;
: 

3'
E

sE
 d =
=

o-

o q)

N
d

N o N o N
)

(D o) l - z o

=c g X
r

og :r'

! ! o o o ul -"
<

o = _-'t
.

@ -{ o : ll Io

o = o o z 9

-{ o -{ r

p_ o a o ! c :t o 0) ot l u o o € = o -U lo It- la t't
r

lo
)

t< lo lo
,

lo la
)

lo lc lf

(I
, o o o o ! 0) = o l

- U
) 3 o l = o" o

(! o o

- o) P m 3 !_ o o o o o c o a o f a

lt o q) m v o) f o- o o- 6' o) o =o o n a

l! o o, m m 0) = o- o o- o' o) o =o o 7 a

'T
t = m m =a m o n U
>

{ q, x o E o.

o o ! o o

o 7 a m ll =
r o o o o c 3 q (I
) ul q) =

l! o o) m v q) f o o o- 6' o) o E d o n a

r! o 0) m m A
) f o- o o- 6' o, d =o o n u

l IT IT A
) l rT c d o j U

c rr (t C 7 f z

o o o)

(o o f o z 9

6 <
t, c o o -t o

N
- F
O

o=
.

E
fr

N

o (- s o g) o

N
) N o N
) o N
)

te
, s s t^
, w b

I o

N i-

N
J

_q o o I o

N
J

N
J

9o ol
P a

I o o
o

9 o

ol i \o

r (! or N
J b 5

@ { I (r
l

(o (o I @ (n

N
J @ (o (o i,,
.l

c lr c q

c C z

I (- z 9

o N N
) l\) o N .U o i



rE !t< 9Q N
-

5 i> ! = !o 88 s,
-

5= €o tr
o

gQ .?
 E

:
oo ('=

'
9d

1' !, to !q

I Ir
)

o)
 (

. 
(,

 (
, 
- 

- 
- 

- 
li

(,
 u

) 
cJ

 (
, 

(,
 (

, 
(,

 (
, 

lg
@

 6
 

6 
{ 

{ 
'{ 

'{ 
".

1 
l^

N
-O

(O
O

'.r
O

)(
,ll

t

la IB IE la

E
!E

'O
!E

!E

(D
II'

@
(I

)t
I)

(D
(D

(!
oo

oo
oo

o0
)

fft
ll:

r:
rf

--
xx

x-
--

oo
oo

oo
oo

33
33

33
33

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

ol
oo

i!t
D

N
o0

)

I$
A

'N
I!N

)N
N

N
N

N
tN

60
00

0
rr

Ja
t)

C
D

C
D

O
)O

,
l\J

 t
\t 

N
t 

N
 l

! 
N

 N
) 

l\)
oo

oo
oo

oo
N

19
N

IU
N

I\'
N

N

o o, (D ! e. o. o

@
!r

fr
-o

(I
)r

IS
iE

?6
H

=
Z

* 
a 

ai
9 

P
L

,li
iE

 E 
E

 q
or

 
t-

L-
' 

4=
>

m
m

m
gz

<
z 

4r
n-

z1 ilt ))
<

da
ai

=
:=

=
h

oo
of

rr
Jr

tr
<

i-i
iq

93
33

lp
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

N
IX

.
rJ

rr
ld

\s
s;

ss
is

tp
ss

ss
s:

ss
lil I

.lo (o
 l.

oo
oo

oo
oi

lO
83

88
88

8S
1€

in

o !l f e 0 !) o 3 o tr

N
-.

1 
-C

o 
C

o 
(o

 N
 

N
,

c.
r5

06
(,

@
(r

q)
r.

.r
5C

or
O

(r
r

O
N

'D
I(

'O
)N

Q
ao

co
{{

o)
J(

,

_o
r

:,1 6

o o o - -' (D ! o a o o T , o- -{ o - -(
, (o :'li,

1' tl ro !q



N N o N !4 { ! = ! E
o

o= oO C
)o

O
F

:I €6
'

t-
. 
o

E
r 

-r
E

'< at
r

eg sa 3

! !, G
I o

@ !t o o. P q o 0)

ln
99

99
99

g9
99

9g
gg

g9
9a

99
9g

qq
99

q9
as

99
eE

E
ge

E
l

E
E

E
E

E
B

ss
B

s$
$g

E
B

*s
$H

$$
$$

E
$(

qt
{q

E
$(

(A
$$

*1
1

a 
(,

 N
l r

 
o 

(o
 @

 -
.1

 c
D

 (
r 

5 
(,

 N
 r

 
o 

(o
 o

 {
 c

D
 (

, 
a 

c,
 N

 r
 

o 
(o

 @
 .'

.J
 c

D
 (

rt
 5

 (
, 

N
 r

 
o 

.o
 o

'{

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
gE

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
gE

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

I-
N

) 
N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 I
! 

N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 1

9 
N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

lto l6 lo o o - -{ o

E
E

E
E

E
aH

E
E

S
sF

E
gS

sE
E

E
s=

ss
F

E
E

E
B

E
sE

$:
aE

E
E

E
E

 c
t5

 
<

i! 
- 

X
i i

io
6@

oo
or

 
{ 

so
o 

A
 i\

 a
 5

N
(o

oo
r 

-.
1 

N
(r

o,
r(

r(
n@

I@

B
qE

E
E

E
E

E
H

iE
E

E
E

E
=

E
-E

44
**

Ifi
E

IiI
I 

E
IE

 IE
*

(r
5o

ri'
r 

cD
rJ

on
 

c.
) 

N
 

(,
 

.s
 

s 
q,

 c
o 

cD
 N

 (
, 

...
r 

_'
.r

 A
 

N
O

A
(O

(,
(,

)
<

o 
-{

 6
 @

 o
 6

 
E

 r
u 

or
 <

,r
 @

 (,
 a

o 
(,

 (
, 

(,
 -.

J 
(,

 (
o 

q 
o,

 ! 
er

 o
 o

, 
N

 o
 q

r 
N

 (
, 

o,
 5

 r
 

'{ 
(,

 "
'l

d 
o 

oi
 E

 <
 E

 -
.r

 o
 @

 @
 a

a 
@

 @
 o

 o
 (

, 
qr

 t
u 

-i 
(,

l (
, 

o,
'-r

 @
 o

 r
 

o 
N

, 
(,

 (
, 

(,
 I

 
o,

 o
i !

h 
9 

P
 :

'
; 

* 
; 

; 
s 

r.
o 
i 

b 
b 

io
 -

r 
ir 

b,
 b

, 
i, 

i, 
5 

ir 
a 

s 
irr

 io
 - 

io
 b

 ir
t 

ttt
 q

t 
e 

+
 b

 b
 N

 b
 b

 ! 
ip

 1
6 

S
 5

 6
 5

 E
 6

 6
 6

 <
 d

 6
 q

t 
N

 N
 N

 o
r 
o 

r 
o 

r 
r 

s 
(,

 o
 a

 <
.r

t 
o 

(o
 (

o 
o 

-'J
 (

o 
o)

 o
 o

, 
5 

{



t9 c'
J t9 o N !f { ! = 3 E
O

o= oO oo o- E
_

=
J

t<
o

!-
. 
o

se et
r

eg 3,
e

3

! D cr !q N

@ 0, l o q !q o

o,
 o

 o
 o

, 
o 

o,
 o

 o
) 

o)
 c

D
 o

) 
ct

 o
) 

o)
 o

) 
o)

 o
) 

o)
 q

, 
ot

 q
) 

o)
 q

) 
o,

 o
 o

) 
ct

 o
, 

o,
 o

, 
o)

 o
) 

o)
 q

, 
o)

 o
 -

 -
 o

r 
ln

E
F

F
E

nx
gx

xx
nn

xx
€€

€s
€s

n€
€€

qE
qA

qE
qq

E
qE

E
E

E
E

II
6i

 N
) 
r 

O
 @

 O
 -

-r
 O

' (
,r

 A
 (

, 
fu

 r
 

O
 (O

 C
r' 

{ 
O

' (
, 

A
 @

 N
 r

 
O

 (O
 @

 _
.1

 C
D

 (
rr

 ! 
(' 

N
 i

 
O

 (O
 @

 _
{ 

C
D

 (,
rr

rr
fr

rl
N

 N
) 

N
' I

O
 N

) 
N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

) 
N

 I
\)

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 I

=
 =

 =
 : =

 - 
: 

=
 : 

=
 - 

b 
b 

5.
 b

 5
. b

. d
. 

b 
- 

b 
- 

E
- 

6.
 -

 a
 b

 E
 t

s 
b.

. 
E

lF

! 
a 

a 
s 

s 
(r

 (
r 

(r
 (

r 
(r

 .
.1

 -
.1

 -
l 

n 
{ 

n'
{ 

-l 
-l 

-l 
_{

 -
.1

 {
'{ 

_.
,1

 ".
J 

-.
J'

.1
 ! 

o!
, 

C
') 

o|
, 
o,

 o
, 

C
r,

 O
, 

C
I, 

o:
,

I\J
 I

\j 
N

J 
N

 N
J 

N
J 

I.J
 N

J 
N

J 
N

J 
N

J 
N

J 
N

J 
N

 N
, 
N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
) 

N
J 

N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

6i
5o

o6
66

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

(>
oo

N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 I

\)
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 I

S
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

) 
N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N

o. o IU
'

IE lo o o o { o t)

H
qE

H
qE

E
E

H
€E

qq
qH

H
H

F
F

H
E

qg
H

H
H

F
E

qF
E

H
E

E
E

E
E

E
a

$s
H

*e
sH

=
E

E
E

**
E

H
ul

sd
sF

aH
:H

S
H

H
$A

S
sq

F
A

qH
:S

E
 ; 

l l l
 a 

l i
z1

*g
ga

E
 l g 

=
 E

 l a 
E

 E
 E

 l l
 * 

i E
 ; i

 g 

E
 i ; 

E
 E

 E
 E

fr
 

=
=

a]
i",

 ?
=

 E

o 2_
E

g

('J
 

I
J 

oo
 

cr
 

".
IN

)N
C

D
 

q!
-o

) 
J9

 
-O

'
r.

.r
 r

rr
 t

r.
.ts

 -
<

L 
5 

N
 o

r 
rs

 s
-<

oL
b-

- 
o 

- 
<

,r
 -o

 io
 -

'-r
 (

o 
(,

 
a:

r 
"'l

 o
,5

 (
, 

(,
l

-.
r 
- 

i6
 r

o 
ii 

6 
6 

d 
6 

- 
5 

<
, 

i\-
, 
6 

i\)
 r 

@
 (,

 N
 (

, 
a\

 (
, 

qi
 (

o 
q 

qo
 (,

 (
,l 

(,
 (

, 
I 

(,
 o

 5
 N

 r
 N

 (
, 

(n
S

 s
" 

F
 ii

 F
 F

 F
 O

 6
 s

n 
:.r

 s
" 
I 

i 
:.r

 s
" 

O
 F

 io
 F

 .
. 

tt 
P

 I 
: 

9 
90

 s
n 
: 

1.
, 
| 

90
 !"

 I 
I 

? 
I 

=
- 
5

b 
b 

b 
b 

b 
io

 b
 -

 
o 

o 
r 

o 
cn

 N
 N

 (
,l 

N
 o

 q
r 

N
 N

 (
,r

 o
 o

 (
, 

@
 N

 o
 N

 (
, 

@
 r

 
r 

o 
@

 g
, 

-.
1 

N
 (

,
5 

6 
6 

6 
i 

E
 6

 t
: 

o 
6 

@
 @

 6
, 

(,
r 

an
 o

 o
 o

 (
, 

- 
@

 o
 o

 o
 (

o 
o 

o 
or

 (
, 

(,
 o

 (
, 

or
 o

 (
, 

o 
N

 (
, 

(o



N N o t9 !4 { ! = T E
O

o= oO oo o- E
_

:I €6
'

!-
. 
o

s.
?

Q
tr

qg sa 3

! o, c! !q

@ t - o C
I

!q q o !,

o,
 o

, 
o,

 o
, 

o,
 o

, 
o,

 o
, 

o)
 o

) 
o)

 c
D

 o
, 

o,
 o

 o
, 

o,
 o

) 
o,

 o
, 

o)
 o

, 
o)

 o
, 

o,
 o

, 
o,

 o
) 

o,
 o

, 
o,

 o
, 

o,
 o

, 
o,

 o
, 
- 

- 
o,

 ln
rr

rt
lD

(o
 (

o 
@

 (
o 

@
 (

o 
@

 @
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

(o
 @

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

(o
 @

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
(o

 @
 @

 (
o 

lq
(,

 (
, 

(,
 (

, 
(,

 (
, 

(,
 (,

) 
(,

 (
, 

(,
 (

, 
(,

r 
(,

 (
, 

(,
 (

, 
(,

 (
, 

(,
 (

, 
(,

 q
) 
(,

 (
, 

(,
 (

, 
(,

 (
, 

(,
 (

, 
(,

 (
, 

(,
 (,

J 
q)

 q
r 

9,
 (

, 
lx

N
 r

 
o(

o 
@

 -
.r

 o
,(

, 
5 

or
 N

 j 
o 

@
 c

o.
-t

 o
, 

(,
| 
! 

@
 N

 r
 

o 
(o

@
'{ 

ct
,(

,5
 

o,
 N

, 
r 

o 
(o

@
 -

.J
 (D

o 
5 

'_

fr
rr

Jr
rl

N
 N

 N
 N

 N
) 
N

 N
 N

' N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 I
\)

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 I
=

:=
:=

::=
:=

:=
::=

:=
>

:>
:>

>
:::

=
=

>
=

=
=

>
>

>
=

=
:

ss
ss

ss
ss

ss
ss

ss
ss

ss
ss

ss
:s

ss
ss

ss
ss

ss
ss

sH
sl

F
o o. o Iu

,

IE lo o o { o

H
qH

H
E

F
E

qE
qE

gq
E

E
E

E
H

E
F

H
E

F
gF

H
gF

qH
H

€q
F

E
E

E
E

q
E

 o
 i

i 
E

 F
 6

 6
 (

,r
 6

 (
, 

E
 E

 a
 @

 @
 t-

 -
 

@
 (

o 
N

 -
 

co
 o

 o
, 
o 

..r
 s

 o
 r

 
o 

(o
 N

 :
+

 5
 (

Jl
 a

 J
 @

 (,
8;

B
T

dB
E

F
J;

18
63

S
5e

33
S

N
8N

3S
6t

e8
88

S
3E

E
R

A
&

3

-a
*a

fig
;!i

lfi
gE

aS
3[

3l
fl*

*'
E

'E
a-

*t
a*

s*
af

ia
flg

N
N

 r
\.t

 
N

s
N

) 
O

) 
O

D
 

J 
O

@
r-

 
I 

N
(c

rr
 

r

- 
- 

--
or

- 
-.

o 
-o

 
<

,J
 is

 s
 -

 _c
n 
iu

 -c
o 

-q
r 
- 

'o
 r\

) 
-o

 I 
_o

 
-(

o 
(,

 
cD

 
-t

o 
<

p 
N

E
 o

r 
co

 ij
:j:

 
j:6

 
a 

oi
, 

C
., 

@
 ! 

=
 E

 <
n 

- 
o 

j 
(,

 o
 +

 N
:.t

 -
 

o 
a 

@
rr

(,
s"

'J
 

@
<

 <
 6

 i
t 

d 
@

 o
 5

 F
 6

 6
 6

 <
rr

 <
 o

 e
 -

-l 
- 

@
 6

 @
 tu

 @
 o

, 
o 

o 
c)

 "
.r

 (
o 

N
 (

rr
 @

 o
 (

o 
(,

 o
 "

l'{
 

"l
S

 ; 
5 

e 
o 

o 
s 

- 
i, 

io
 ; 

A
 i'

r 
s 

ir 
- 

a 
b 

f 
b 

! 
b 

ir 
! 

b 
5 

io
 b

o 
io

 -
r 

b 
io

 o
 io

 e
r 

so
 o

 <
.4

 i'
)

i;X
i6

56
E

:6
i5

(5
6f

uo
,o

co
-o

N
c,

o(
,o

'.1
 

@
oo

o,
@

o"
',1

 o
 (

oo
r 

(o
 o

 s
 (

, 
oc

t)



N (.
, t9 o N !f { ! = f eo o= oO oo or fI q6

'
!-

. 
o

s.
z

.?
tr

.E
g

B
3

3

! !, G
t I 5

@ f o !q q o

O
, 

O
, 

O
, 

O
, 

O
, 

O
, 

O
, 

O
, 

O
, 

C
D

 c
t)

 q
) 

O
, 

O
, 

O
) 

O
, 

O
, 
ol

 O
, 

O
, 

O
, 

O
, 

O
, 

O
, 

O
, 

O
) 

O
, 

O
, 

O
, 
ol

 O
, 

O
, 

O
, 

O
, 

O
, 

O
r 

or
 -

 
- 

l,
ar

rlo
@

 (
o.

o 
(o

 (
o 

<
o 

ro
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
@

 @
 @

 @
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

(o
 @

 (
o 

(o
 lq

a 
a 

5 
a 

5 
s 

5 
5 

5 
S

 E
 5

 A
 A

 A
 A

 A
 A

 A
 A

 S
 A

 (
' 

(' 
(' 

(' 
(' 

(' 
(' 

(' 
(' 

(' 
(' 

(' 
(' 

(' 
(,

) 
(' 

(' 
lx

r 
O

 (
O

 @
'{ 

C
D

 (
, 

5 
(,

 
N

 r
 

O
 (

O
 @

 \
l 

C
D

 (
, 

5 
(,

 
N

 -
 

O
 (

O
 C

D
 _.

1 
C

D
 o

 
5 

(,
 

N
 r

 
O

 (
O

 @
'! 

C
D

 (
, 

5 
(,

 
-

rr
rr

r-
-l

N
 N

 I
! 

N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
) 

N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

) 
N

 N
 N

 I
s 

N
 N

 D
 E

 s
 - 

[ 
s 

E
 N

 S
 b

 S
 N

 N
 il

 -
 b

. 
[. 

s 
N

 il
 b

 - 
s 

N
 : 

>
 : 

>
 : 

: 
>

 =
 ] 

] 
lo

Q
 Q

 a
 Q

 q
 E

 q
 q

 a
 q

 q
 q

 q
 s

 s
' s

 E
 s

 s
 s

 s
 s

 s
 E

 s
 !!

 s
, 
s 

e 
s 

e 
e 

e 
e 

e 
e.

 . 
s 

l*
N

J 
N

 N
J 

N
J 

N
J 

N
J 

N
J 

N
J 

N
J 

N
 N

J 
N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
N

 N
 N

 I
S

 I
! 

N
 N

 N
) 

N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

) 
N

 N
 N

) 
N

 N
 N

 N
 N

) 
N

 N

T q o ltD t!) lc l6 o o x -{ o t

88
33

33
38

88
83

38
88

88
88

33
88

88
88

88
88

88
88

88
8

E
 g

B
5*

E
*8

58
9t

s8
3d

 r
S

A
S

i 
t3

3H
R

i g
8d

8f
 6

-ji
E

dd
dB

S
E

f 
ea

f 
gB

iS
F

se
lE

de
F

;n
B

B
rN

st
ss

iE
dE

dB
aE

S
lE

ts

*,
 ; e 

r 
fi 

! [ 

E
 **

iA
* i i

 I 
e 

* 
E

 a 
e 

* 
* 

E
 ; 

* 
; l a 

g 

1 

g 

; 

A
?*

A
i

o 
e2

(,
r 

5 
r 

C
', 

I 
N

(O
 

N
<

rr
_o

<
l- 

-@
 

(,
) 

r 
Ls

- 
-r

.r
--

o_
o 

N
 

J 
o 

-<
n 

<
,r

 _
-o

'o
 

r:
l Q

;i 
.; 

G
 c

, 
6 

or
 6

 -
 

N
 t$

 (
,i 

5 
66

 
r.

: 
tl 

- 
ii 

<
,r

 o
r 

<
n 

O
 -

 
t.l

 s
 J

 (
o 

N
 I 

(,
 (

, 
(,

 (
o 

(D
 c

o 
o 

cD
 c

D

F
 ii

 I
 I

 !
o 

F
 F

 a
i 9

" 
N

 9
) 

O
 I 

=
 9n

 j 
O

 !,
 I 

!, 
:.r

 :.
 O

 S
, 

!.,
 I 

9o
 N

 i.
, 
I 

.l'
 I 

N
 I 

P
 i'

 9
 9

 N
ir 

bo
 -

 
b 

@
 r

 
.'.

,1
 C

D
 @

 r
 

(O
 r

 
o 

r 
O

 (
, 

(,
 O

) 
N

 1
9 

Q
 @

 :
a 

Q
 (

,)
 Q

 O
 r

 
J'

{ 
:a

 (
, 

N
 N

 :
' 

:' 
Q

 !
 

S
6 

6 
rs

 5
 6

 o
 <

ri 
6 

<
 o

 N
 @

 <
 N

 E
 ! 

s 
(,

r 
@

 o
 (

, 
o,

 o
 N

'{ 
a 

(o
 (

, 
o 

(,
 A

 o
 (

g 
o 

o 
5 

o 
o 

o



N (.
, N o N !f { E = ! Io o= oo oo or 5- <
 (r

,

L.
O

E
r 

-r
E

-
et

r
sg sa 3

t o, G
I !q or

o t, o o o- I ar o t,

q)
 o

, 
q)

 o
, 

o)
 q

, 
g)

 o
) 

o)
 g

) 
q,

 o
, 

q,
 o

, 
o,

 o
, 

o,
 o

, 
o,

 o
, 

cD
 o

, 
cD

 o
, 

cD
 o

, 
o,

 o
) 

o,
 c

D
 o

) 
cD

 o
) 

o,
 q

) 
o)

 - 
- 

o,
 ln

JJ
JI

O
(o

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
@

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

(o
 lo

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

@
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
lq

aa
E

6E
A

E
sA

s5
55

S
55

55
S

55
5S

5S
5s

55
5A

A
S

A
A

5A
!5

1-
o)

 (
n 

(,
 (

, 
(r

l (
rl 

(r
r 
(,

 (r
r 
(,

 (
n 

a 
a 

s 
a 

5 
5 

5 
s 

a 
5 

(,
 o

) 
(,

 (
, 

(,
 (

, 
(,

 (
, 

(,
 (D

 N
 N

 N
 N

) 
N

 N
) 

N
) 
N

 l+
O

 (
O

 @
'{ 

O
, 
(,

 5
 @

 N
 -

 
O

 (
o 

O
 _

'.1
 O

, 
ql

 A
 o

 N
 I 

O
 (

O
 @

 { 
O

, 
(,

r 
S

 (
, 

N
 r

 
O

 (O
 @

'.1
 C

D
 (,

 S
 (

, 
N

JI
JJ

JJ
JI

N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

) 
N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
) 

N
 N

 N
 N

 I
$ 

N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 I

\)
 N

 N
 N

' N
 I

N
N

-N
-N

S
N

tr
[-

.n
D

.il
b-

S
-N

S
N

N
N

D
-N

N
N

il-
[.8

[ 
N

lo
rr

ro
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oO

o1
6

N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
' N

 N
' N

 N
) 
N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 I

i'
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

ao
oo

oo
oo

ol
rf

rr
rr

rt
I\)

 N
 N

 1
9 

IU
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
) 

N
 N

) 
N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 I

la
n ls lc llt o J o { o

qE
E

F
E

F
qE

gF
E

E
qE

E
qF

E
qE

E
gE

E
F

gE
qq

H
E

H
E

E
E

E
E

E
s

E
q{

d$
sd

H
fi 

:g
:3

$;
E

H
H

d$
$$

$H
da

dH
:g

B
*q

H
N

E
pd

g

fif
iIf

i=
fil

fi*
E

IIE
i,*

ilx
E

E
E

*f
ig

ga
;l3

E
fi 

i1
6g

gI
I

fr
fr

=
' =

ea
 #

xZ
 

" 
?

oD
ro

r
N

 
N

r 
O

(O
r(

r(
' 

N
 

O
 

-.
1 

N
 

I 
(J

n

S
 _O

 - 
- 

- 
r.

r 
-O

 L 
C

n 
-S

 _
C

o 
i..

r 
i.r

 _-
 

- 
<

,r
-<

-n
 <

,r
-O

 
<

O
 r

.: 
<

O
 -

' 
+

 t
O

 -S
 -

<
,r

 C
o 

q 
5 

ql
- 

\
(' 

r$
 E

 o
, 

N
 (

, 
i; 

s 
-o

 
o 

(o
 r

 
(r

 a
 (

, 
(,

 o
 -

.1
 (

o 
(,

 
s 

J 
s 

(,
) 

o,
 o

 N
 r

 
(r

 (
rr

 s
 

o,
 o

'{ 
N

@
(,

r 
N

 (
, 

6,
 @

 -
 

di
 N

 o
r 

@
 ir

 @
 (

,| 
5 

o 
a'

{ 
5 

o 
5 

r 
o 

o 
@

 o
 (

,r
 (

,'.
1 

o 
(,

 a
 r

 
(,

 (
, 

o)
'.1

 N
'.1

 @
b 

i,h
 t

^r
 - 

ir 
b 

r 
i,r

 b
 i'

.r
 i 

br
 ir

r 
L 

L 
;:r

r 
ie

 b
r 
ir 

bo
 in

 b
 b

 i 
b 

i^
r 
r 

ir 
b 

il 
bo

'.r
 r

 :
- 

br
 b

o 
b 

bo
 i,

6 
o 

-r
 -

r 
o 

-{
 r

 A
 o

 N
 o

, 
5 

N
 o

 r
 (

, 
@

 @
 o

 o
 o

 o
 o

 j 
o 

(,
'..

J 
o 

o 
o 

o 
(,

 o
 @

 r 
o 

N
 @

 @



N (.
, N o N !l { ! = ! Q
'o

o= oO oo or c- fT <
.o L.
O

s.
2

et
r

eg
.

9= irt
 G

l
3

! !, G
I !q ot

@ t, f x o o o lD E
T o t

N N
)

-! o J o =
'

j 6' 6 p o ;1 _q
J (,
, -{ @ (o (', @ ol

I I to
o,

 o
, 
o 

o,
 o

, 
o,

 o
, 

o,
 o

, 
o,

 o
, 

o)
 o

, 
o 

o,
 o

) 
o,

 o
 o

, 
o,

 o
) 

o,
 o

r 
6,

 c
, 

o,
 o

, 
o 

o,
 o

, 
o,

 o
, 
o 

It
rr

rJ
rlo

(o
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
(o

 (
o 

@
 (

o 
@

 (
o 

@
 lo

as
5a

a5
s5

s5
!s

5s
s5

5A
55

A
A

A
A

A
A

S
5A

5S
55

l-
(O

 <
O

 (
O

 (
O

 @
 @

 @
 @

 @
 @

 @
 @

 @
 @

'.J
'..

1 
_.

1 
'..

1 
_.

1 
_{

 {
'{ 

_'
.1

 '.1
 C

,)
 c

') 
o)

 O
, 

O
, 

O
, 

C
', 

O
, 

O
) 
lrt

(,
r 

N
 r

 
O

 (O
 @

'.1
 O

, 
(,

l A
 (

, 
N

 r
 

O
 (

O
 @

 "
.1

 C
D

 (,
 5

 (
, 

N
 r

 
O

 (O
 @

 _
{ 

O
, 
(,

 5
 (

, 
N

 r
Jf

JJ
JI

N
 N

N
 

N
N

N
 

N
N

)N
 

N
N

N
N

N
'N

N
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

 
N

N
I

(,
 

(,
N

 
N

N
N

 
N

N
N

 
N

N
N

N
)N

 
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

IS
N

N
N

 
N

N
IO

I 
r 

oo
 @

 @
 @

@
 @

 @
 @

 @
 @

 @
 @

@
 @

 o
 

co
@

 @
 

J 
r 

r 
r 

r 
ln

)
IJ

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
) 

N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

) 
N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
) 

N
 N

 N
) 

N
 N

 |
ii

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

ol
JJ

JJ
JI

N
 N

N
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

) 
N

)N
N

N
)N

N
N

'N
N

N
N

N
N

N
 

N
N

N
 

N
N

N
 

N
I

la lc l6 o J o o -{ o A
'6 = o

F
F

E
H

E
F

E
H

H
E

E
gE

E
E

H
H

E
F

E
E

H
F

qH
E

E
H

F
E

qg
E

S
E

qF
F

S
N

:E
H

hq
A

H
N

S
F

F
$E

E
E

E
S

A
qH

T
d$

S
H

}

* 
* 

r 

=
 a 

t I
 r 

I g 
3 

H
 i fi 

E
 * 

4 
I I

 ;;
f;i

il q 

i E
 H

ilE
*i

ll 
af

i'=
 H

=
IE

 fr
fr

 =
 =

27
 l=

?2
 H

=
b 

'.=
2 

c"
 f

;i*
"i 

o5
 fi

d 
; 

=
 

=
2 

i
^g

gd
z

Y
e,

8o
t

a!
r

l(,
r 

N
 

J 
@

N
E

 
J 

{.
|\r

J 
5(

r(
r(

, 
J 

(C
r 

cI
) 

O
'o

 io
 

-o
 s

 -<
.r

r 
-o

 's
 L,

l 
- 

s 
-r

o 
-o

 -
or

 's
 r

.r
 

- 
-<

o 
o 

qr
 -o

 
o,

 
lp

 _'
..r

 o,
 -

 
-S

, 
-

if,
 6

 .,
r 
6 

(n
 - 

<
 b

 6
i o

 --
r 

@
 o

 6
 @

 N
 -.

..r
 (,

 (
, 
5 

o 
(o

 r 
(,

 (
, 

N
 (

o'
{ 

N
 c

r,
 @

 @
 5

an
 @

 E
 o

 o
 o

 q
r 
- 

@
 o

 o
 o

 o
 .-

t 
o)

 o
 (o

 s
 (

, 
o 

@
 @

 ! 
! 

cD
 @

 J
 o

 o
, 
o 

co
 "

.1
 @

-.
J 
L 

i$
 b

 b
 b

 ir
 b

 ij
l i

r,
 s

 b
 L

r 
i.r

 i!
 (o

 io
 i 

L 
b'

.r
 b

o'
.r

'.r
 s

 i,
 b

 b
 b

 o
 -

 q
r 

!s
N

t 
o 

j 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

A
 o

i .
.r

 o
 -

{ 
o,

 @
 -

'.J
 N

 (
o 

N
 o

 o
, 
(,

 N
 o

 o
 c

t 
o 

cD
 N

 (
, 

(,
 o

 o

o, { _co !o P @ (n



 



 
 

Neel Parikh, Executive Director *  3005 112t h St  E Tacoma, WA 98446-2215 * (253) 548-3300 *  FAX (253) 537-4600 *  www.piercecountylibrary.org 

 
 
 
 
 

 Date: December 28, 2012  
 To: Chair Linda Ishem and members of the Board of Trustees 

 From: Georgia Lomax, Deputy Director 

 Subject: November Dashboard 

 

Attached is the November dashboard, which reflects some fine tuning based on discussion at last 
month’s Board meeting. 
 
I am also attaching definitions for the measurements on the year-to-date comparison charts and on the 
monthly table for each category. 
 
During the next meeting I’ll answer any questions or hear further adjustments you’d like me to make to 
the dashboard.  Once the tool is finalized it will be included in your monthly packet in the Officer’s 
Report section. 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 



CUSTOMER SERVICE/PHILANTHROPY DASHBOARD - NOVEMBER 
VISITS

2011 2012 % Change

Door Count 204,318 192,784 -5.65%

Catalog 78,541 176,995 125.35%

Website 216,960 206,800 -4.68%

Job & Business Portal 1,605 914 -43.05%

Military Portal* 0 142 NA

Total 501,424 577,635 15.20%

CHECKOUTS

2011 2012 % Change

Checkouts 693,655 625,010 -9.90%

eBook Downloads 36,585 45,806 25.20%

Total 730,240 670,816 -8.14%

CUSTOMERS

2011 2012 % Change

Active Cardholders 246,084 248,388 0.94%

New Cards 4,209 3,570 -15.18%

Checkout Transactions 107,037 96,405 -9.93%

Unique Users 49,348 45,300 -8.20%

PHILANTHROPY

2011 2012 % Change

Foundation Donors 344 223 -35.17%

New Foundation Donors 232 88 -62.07%

$ Raised by Foundation $29,382 $21,544 -26.68%

$ Provided by Friends $0 $2,255 #DIV/0!

BRANCH CLOSURES
2011 2012

Sumner* 1/1-7/31 (212 Days) Snow Closures 1/17-1/23 (7 Days)

Milton 1/1-1/12 (12 Days) Bonney Lk 2/13-2/26 (13 Days)

UP 1/1-2/6 (37 Days) Graham 3/21-4/5 (15 Days)

Lakewood 8/22-9/5 (14 Days) South Hill 4/9-5/6 (27 Days)

Gig Harbor 10/12-10/31 (19 Days) Tillicum 7/3-8/5 (33 Days)

Parkland 12/5-12/8 (4 Days) Sumner 7/30-9/3 (35 Days)

Summit 9/17-9/30 (13 Days)

*Impacted by major road construction Steilacoom 10/17-11/14 (28 Days)
 August 2010-July 2011 Bookmobile Svc. Ended 11/11

Key Center 11/14-2/3/13 (81 Days)

November

November

November

November

2,115,751 

2,423,285 
2,495,620 

2,430,764 
2,333,036 

635,505 

1,852,314 

2,203,798 

1,477,566 

2,038,657 

1,374,374 

2,340,654 

2,725,360 2,713,514 

2,445,036 

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Year-To-Date Comparison 

Locations

Catalog

Website

*Problem with software that recorded catalog visits May-December 2011 

* 

6,083,275 

7,139,850 

8,080,528 
7,918,702 

7,566,381 

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

7,000,000

8,000,000

9,000,000

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Year-To-Date Comparison 

Total
Checkouts

210,092 
237,640 

241,743 
246,084 248,388 

153,166 152,781 

150,771 

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Year-To-Date Comparison 

Active
Cardholders

Unique Users

472 
375 

0
100
200
300
400
500

2011 2012

Year-To-Date Comparison* 

Total Donors

*Foundation Fiscal Year is July through June 

*Launched March 2012 



Dashboard – definitions (12/2012) 

 

• Visit = A customer entering a building or the catalog or the website 

Year-to-date comparison 

Door Count – # of individuals entering all branches + estimate of bookmobile visits based on checkout 

sessions (no door counters) 

Catalog -- # of visits directly to the Polaris catalog from both external and internal IP addresses  

Website – Total of:  website + Job and Business portal + Military portal (as defined below) 

Monthly 

Door Count – # of individuals entering all branches + estimate of bookmobile visits based on checkout 
sessions (no door counters) 

Catalog -- # of visits directly to the Polaris catalog from both external and internal IP addresses 

Website -- # of visits to the Library’s webpage from both internal and external IP addresses. Does not 
include job & business portal, military portal or catalog visits 

Job & Business Portal -- # of visits to the job & business portal from any address 

Military Portal -- # of visits to the military portal from any address 

Total – Total of:  door count + catalog + website + job & business portal + military portal 

 

• Checkout = An item in any format that is borrowed from the Library 

Year-to-date comparison 

Total Checkouts – Total of: checkouts + eBook downloads as defined below 

Monthly 

Checkouts – # of all items in any physical format that are checked out or renewed 

EBook Downloads – # of items in any electronic format, including books, audio books and music, that 
are checked out or renewed. Does not include database use 

Total – Total of:  checkouts + eBook downloads 

 

  



• Customer = An individual that uses the services or resources of the Library 

Year-to-date comparison 

Active Cardholders – # of individuals that have used their library cards within the last 2 years. (Inactive 
cards are purged twice a year.) 

Unique Users – # of customers that have used their library card at least once in a designated time period 
to borrow or renew materials, regardless of the number of items borrowed. (A customer borrowing 2 
books on 4 separate occasions is counted as “1”.) 

Monthly 

Active Cardholders – # of individuals that have used their library cards within the last 2 years. (Inactive 
cards are purged twice a year.) Includes new cards 

New Cards -- # of library cards issued to new customers 

Checkout Transactions – # of sessions in which any number of items are borrowed or renewed. A 
session begins when a library card number is entered and ends when the transaction is closed with an 
exit, or a new library card number is entered. (A customer borrowing 2 books on 4 separate occasions is 
counted as “4” checkout transactions.) Does not include eBook transactions 

Unique Users – # of customers that have used their library card at least once in a designated time period 
to borrow or renew materials, regardless of the number of items borrowed. (A customer borrowing 2 
books on 4 separate occasions is counted as “1” unique user.) Does not include eBook transactions 

• Philanthropy = A voluntary, financial gift given to support and benefit the 
Library and its service to the community 

Year-to-date comparison 

Total Donors – total # of individuals, organizations or businesses that have donated to the Pierce County 
Library Foundation. Includes both new and returning donors 

Monthly 

Foundation Donors – # of individuals, organizations or businesses that have donated to the Pierce 
County Library Foundation. Includes both new and returning donors 

New Foundation Donors – # of individuals, organizations or businesses that are donating to the Pierce 
County Library Foundation for the first time 

$ Raised by Foundation – Amount of money received from donors to the Pierce County Library 
Foundation 

$ Raised by Friends – Amount of money given or spent by branch Friends of the Library groups to 
support or provide library activities, including programs, events, equipment, furniture, etc. 



 
 

 
Monthly Financial Report 
December 2012 – Interim 

Due to time constraints, this report was prepared on December 27, 2012, prior to the close of the month 

and the year. FY 2012 will not officially be closed until May 2013, when we file the State Auditor’s Annual 

Report. We will provide interim reports noting any significant changes until we are closed. 

Further, December property tax revenue data was not available from Pierce County when this report was 

created. 

 



 General Fund 
 Debt Service 

Fund 
Capital Improvement 

Projects Fund

10,890,208$            83,432$                     2,728,980$                  

‐$                           ‐$                            ‐$                               

10,890,208$            83,432$                     2,728,980$                  

10,890,208$            83,432$                     2,728,980$                  

88,488$                    ‐$                            20,706$                        

5,461$                      ‐$                            ‐$                               

79,613$                    ‐$                            ‐$                               

173,562$                  ‐$                            20,706$                        

310,282$                  ‐$                            626,345$                      

1,792,075$               99$                             462,194$                      

8,614,289$               83,333$                     1,619,736$                  

10,716,646$            83,432$                     2,708,275$                  

10,890,208$            83,432$                     2,728,980$                  

2012 Anticipated Property Tax Revenue 1,537,464$              39$                             ‐$                               

Current Assets ‐ Cash

Pierce County Library System

Statement of Financial Position

December 27, 2012

All Funds

Assets

Payroll Taxes and Benefits Payable

Cash

Investments

Total Cash

Total Current Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Current Liabilities

Warrants Payable

Sales Tax Payable 

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

Total Current Liabilities

Fund Balance

Reserve for Encumbrances

Net Excess (Deficit)

Unreserved Fund Balance

prepared by Dale E. Hough, Finance Manager Unadited Statement 12/27/2012

2 of 6



3 of 6



General Fund  2012 Budget Year To Date Encumbrances Budget Balance
% 

Expended
Revenue

Property Tax/Investment Income  & Other PC Revenue 26,119,495$       26,113,432$       -$                    6,063$                100%
Other Revenue 1,032,600$         1,168,268$         -$                    (135,668)$           113%
Total Revenue 27,152,095$      27,281,700$      -$                   (129,605)$          100%

Expenditures
Personnel/Taxes and Benefits 18,248,749$       17,700,406$       -$                    548,343$            97%

Materials 4,345,144$         3,500,776$         -$                    844,368$            81%
Maintenance and Operations 3,743,639$         3,163,598$         310,282$            269,759$            93%

Transfers Out 814,563$            814,563$            -$                    -$                    100%
Total Expenditures 27,152,095$       25,179,343$       310,282$            1,662,470$         94%

Excess/(Deficit) 2,102,357$         
(less encumbrances) 310,282              
Net Excess (Deficit) 1,792,075$         

Debt Service Fund   2012 Budget  Year To Date  Encumbrances Budget Balance 
% 

Expended
Revenue

Property Tax/Investment Income  & Other PC Revenue -$                    99$                     -$                    (99)$                    0%
Other Revenue -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    0%
Total Revenue -$                   99$                    -$                   (99)$                   0%

Expenditures -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    0%
Excess/(Deficit) 99$                     

Capital Improvement Projects 
Fund   2012 Budget  Year To Date  Encumbrances Budget Balance 

% 
Expended

Revenue
Use of Fund Balance 1,630,997$         1,630,997$         -$                    -$                    100%

Other Revenue -$                    498,383$            -$                    (498,383)$           0%
Transfers In 814,563$            814,563$            -$                    -$                    100%

Total Revenue 2,445,560$        2,943,943$        -$                   (498,383)$          120%

Expenditures
Maintenance and Operations 2,445,560$         1,855,404$         626,345$            (36,189)$             101%

Total Expenditures 2,445,560$         1,855,404$         626,345$            (36,189)$             101%
Excess/(Deficit) 1,088,539$         

(less encumbrances) 626,345              
Net Excess (Deficit) 462,194$            

PIERCE COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM
Interim Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

Year to Date through December 27,  2012
no pre-encumbrances

prepared by Dale E. Hough, Finance Manager Unaudited Statement 12/27/2012

4 of 6



5 of 6



6 of 6



Pierce County Library System

Board Report - Budget to Actual by Object

Report as of: 12/31/2012

Printed on: 12/27/2012 Page 1 of 6

FUND: GENERAL FUND (01)

Object Year-To-Date

Actual

2012

Budget

Encumbrances Balance Expend

%Actual

December

REVENUE ACCOUNTS

31111  PROPERTY TAXES CURRENT  25,039,899.00  25,174,433.14  0.00 (134,534.14)  100.5  0.00

31112  PROPERTY TAXES DELINQUENT  1,001,596.00  826,009.42  0.00  175,586.58  82.5  0.00

31130  SALE OF TAX TITLE PROPERTY  3,000.00  50.63  0.00  2,949.37  1.7  0.00

31210  PRIVATE HARVEST TAX  50,000.00  70,351.79  0.00 (20,351.79)  140.7  0.00

31720  LEASEHOLD EXCISE TAX  15,000.00  15,293.50  0.00 (293.50)  102.0  0.00

TAXES:  26,109,495.00  26,086,138.48  0.00  23,356.52  99.9  0.00

33533  STATE FOREST FUNDS  0.00  3,471.13  0.00 (3,471.13)  0.0  0.00

33872  CONTRACTS FEES - CITIES  3,900.00  3,240.00  0.00  660.00  83.1  0.00

33890  GOVERMENTAL GRANTS  0.00  7,500.00  0.00 (7,500.00)  0.0  0.00

34160  COPIER FEES  23,000.00  25,187.25  0.00 (2,187.25)  109.5  1,471.30

34161  GRAPHICS SERVICES CHARGES  5,000.00  9,244.22  0.00 (4,244.22)  184.9  3,447.79

34162  PRINTER FEES  60,000.00  65,758.64  0.00 (5,758.64)  109.6  3,864.99

34730  INTERLIBRARY LOAN FEES  0.00  209.62  0.00 (209.62)  0.0  0.00

35970  LIBRARY FINES  615,000.00  581,510.66  0.00  33,489.34  94.6  33,652.71

36110  INVESTMENT INCOME  5,000.00  8,927.54  0.00 (3,927.54)  178.6  0.00

36111  INTEREST -  STATE FOREST FUND  0.00  1.87  0.00 (1.87)  0.0  0.00

36190  OTHER INTEREST EARNINGS  0.00  7.16  0.00 (7.16)  0.0  0.48

36200  KEY PEN HLTH DEPT FACILITY REV  2,000.00  1,774.59  0.00  225.41  88.7  0.00

36700  FOUNDATION DONATIONS  150,000.00  126,237.10  0.00  23,762.90  84.2  0.00

36720  FRIENDS' REIMBURSEMENTS  17,000.00  31,881.02  0.00 (14,881.02)  187.5  0.00

36725  DONATIONS - OTHER  2,000.00  6,362.13  0.00 (4,362.13)  318.1  300.55

36910  SALE OF SCRAP AND SALVAGE  0.00  1,504.08  0.00 (1,504.08)  0.0  0.00

36920  BOOK SALE REVENUE  15,000.00  14,068.54  0.00  931.46  93.8  6.50

36990  MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE  21,000.00  35,762.77  0.00 (14,762.77)  170.3  1,400.42

36991  PAYMENT FOR LOST MATERIALS  15,000.00  14,686.48  0.00  313.52  97.9  953.97

36994  UNCLAIMED PROPERTY  0.00  152.99  0.00 (152.99)  0.0  19.78

36995  COLLECTION AGENCY REVENUE  1,000.00  1,354.72  0.00 (354.72)  135.5  90.00

36996  JURY DUTY REIMBURSEMENT  0.00  191.00  0.00 (191.00)  0.0  0.00

36997  PRIOR YEAR'S REFUNDS  9,700.00  44,855.73  0.00 (35,155.73)  462.4  0.00

36998  E RATE REIMBURSEMENT  71,000.00  160,451.03  0.00 (89,451.03)  226.0  0.00

36999  REBATES - PROCUREMENT CARD  22,000.00  26,098.88  0.00 (4,098.88)  118.6  0.00

CHARGES OTHER:  1,037,600.00  1,170,439.15  0.00 (132,839.15)  112.8  45,208.49

39510  SALE OF FIXED ASSETS  5,000.00  14,892.98  0.00 (9,892.98)  297.9  0.00

39520  INSURANCE RECOVERIES - CAPITAL ASSETS  0.00  10,229.00  0.00 (10,229.00)  0.0  0.00

TOTAL FOR REVENUE ACCOUNTS  27,281,699.61  27,152,095.00  0.00  100.5 (129,604.61) 45,208.49 

EXPENSE ACCOUNTS

51100  SALARIES AND WAGES  13,120,731.00  12,739,804.70  0.00  380,926.30  97.1  1,029,226.44

51105  ADDITIONAL HOURS  219,732.00  234,073.57  0.00 (14,341.57)  106.5  18,468.89

51106  SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL  155,888.00  134,392.53  0.00  21,495.47  86.2  10,257.88

51107  SUBSTITUTE HOURS  279,550.00  299,156.68  0.00 (19,606.68)  107.0  27,683.10

51109  TUITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM  5,300.00  5,260.49  0.00  39.51  99.3  0.00

51200  OVERTIME WAGES  12,500.00  9,099.32  0.00  3,400.68  72.8  245.39

51999  ADJ WAGE/SALARY TO MATCH PLAN (281,613.00)  0.00  0.00 (281,613.00)  0.0  0.00

52001  INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE  167,508.00  168,601.42  0.00 (1,093.42)  100.7  13,318.60

52002  MEDICAL INSURANCE  2,223,925.00  1,915,136.04  0.00  308,788.96  86.1  151,034.33

52003  F.I.C.A.  1,057,572.00  990,180.20  0.00  67,391.80  93.6  79,425.92



Pierce County Library System

Board Report - Budget to Actual by Object

Report as of: 12/31/2012

Printed on: 12/27/2012 Page 2 of 6

FUND: GENERAL FUND (01)

Object Year-To-Date

Actual

2012

Budget

Encumbrances Balance Expend

%Actual

December

EXPENSE ACCOUNTS

52004  RETIREMENT  1,075,842.00  907,639.63  0.00  168,202.37  84.4  73,563.71

52005  DENTAL INSURANCE  231,700.00  214,822.02  0.00  16,877.98  92.7  17,105.17

52006  OTHER BENEFIT  9,580.00  15,738.02  0.00 (6,158.02)  164.3  800.00

52010  LIFE AND DISABILITY INSURANCE  19,544.00  14,374.54  0.00  5,169.46  73.5  1,983.96

52020  UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION  41,500.00  52,127.11  0.00 (10,627.11)  125.6  0.00

52200  UNIFORMS  300.00  0.00  0.00  300.00  0.0  0.00

52999  ADJ BENEFITS TO MATCH PLAN (90,810.00)  0.00  0.00 (90,810.00)  0.0  0.00

PERSONNEL  18,248,749.00  17,700,406.27  0.00  548,342.73  97.0  1,423,113.39

53100  OFFICE/OPERATING SUPPLIES  172,960.00  188,317.70  9,164.28 (24,521.98)  114.2  2,787.37

53101  CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES  41,000.00  47,805.92  0.00 (6,805.92)  116.6  0.00

53102  MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES  40,000.00  44,727.26  0.00 (4,727.26)  111.8  0.00

53103  AUDIOVISUAL PROCESSING SUP  25,000.00  30,848.97  0.00 (5,848.97)  123.4  2,658.42

53104  BOOK PROCESSING SUPPLIES  22,000.00  13,526.60  0.00  8,473.40  61.5  0.00

53200  FUEL  55,000.00  46,469.91  0.00  8,530.09  84.5  0.00

53401  ADULT MATERIALS  1,043,174.00  801,162.22  0.00  242,011.78  76.8  38,713.00

53402  SERIALS  20,000.00  15,798.40  0.00  4,201.60  79.0  657.48

53403  PERIODICALS  120,000.00  62,714.54  0.00  57,285.46  52.3  1,036.28

53405  JUVENILE BOOKS  540,000.00  527,915.84  0.00  12,084.16  97.8  35,518.28

53406  PROFESSIONAL COLLECTION  25,000.00  22,094.32  0.00  2,905.68  88.4  181.25

53407  INTERNATIONAL COLLECTION  110,000.00  75,198.00  0.00  34,802.00  68.4  76.15

53408  AUDIOVISUAL MATERIALS - ADULT  1,189,507.00  1,019,308.84  0.00  170,198.16  85.7  67,975.19

53409  AUDIOVISUAL MATERIALS - JUV  130,000.00  80,688.56  0.00  49,311.44  62.1  8,159.41

53410  REFERENCE MATERIALS  0.00  345.00  0.00 (345.00)  0.0  0.00

53411  ELECTRONIC INFO SOURCES  200,000.00  227,467.24  0.00 (27,467.24)  113.7  12,288.00

53412  REFERENCE SERIALS  45,000.00  25,674.58  0.00  19,325.42  57.1  6,337.29

53413  ELECTRONIC SERVICES  255,000.00  131,025.71  0.00  123,974.29  51.4  37,303.58

53414  ELECTRONIC COLLECTION  446,654.00  270,256.44  0.00  176,397.56  60.5  0.00

53464  VENDOR PROCESSING SERVICES  190,000.00  204,908.34  0.00 (14,908.34)  107.8  12,291.26

53490  COLLECTION PROJECTS  30,809.00  33,863.84  0.00 (3,054.84)  109.9  0.00

53499  GIFTS - MATERIALS  0.00  2,353.85  0.00 (2,353.85)  0.0  47.85

53500  MINOR EQUIPMENT  13,500.00  9,348.32  368.31  3,783.37  72.0  318.35

53501  FURNISHINGS  50,000.00  62,352.30  27,297.87 (39,650.17)  179.3  3,365.10

53502  IT HARDWARE  196,200.00  219,626.64  0.00 (23,426.64)  111.9  0.00

53503  PRINTERS  20,000.00  1,627.96  0.00  18,372.04  8.1  0.00

53505  SOFTWARE  65,736.00  72,757.26  0.00 (7,021.26)  110.7  0.00

54100  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  412,613.00  284,291.73  41,876.52  86,444.75  79.0  6,471.74

54101  LEGAL SERVICES  50,000.00  128,569.95  0.00 (78,569.95)  257.1  0.00

54102  COLLECTION AGENCY  28,200.00  28,836.36  0.00 (636.36)  102.3  1,970.40

54161  RESOURCE SHARING SERVICES  25,000.00  16,183.47  0.00  8,816.53  64.7  20.00

54162  BIBLIOGRAPHICS SERVICES  40,000.00  25,191.86  0.00  14,808.14  63.0  395.00

54163  PRINTING AND BINDING  2,000.00  2,023.13  0.00 (23.13)  101.2  0.00

54165  ILL LOST ITEM CHARGE  3,000.00  2,198.50  0.00  801.50  73.3  147.43

54200  POSTAGE  45,000.00  44,328.63  0.00  671.37  98.5  9,000.00

54201  TELEPHONE/DATA LINES  128,800.00  312,414.66  0.00 (183,614.66)  242.6  5,731.24

54300  TRAVEL  29,950.00  27,774.44  0.00  2,175.56  92.7  387.54

54301  MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENTS  28,850.00  29,007.85  0.00 (157.85)  100.5  2,237.74

54400  ADVERTISING  31,256.00  23,905.38  0.00  7,350.62  76.5  0.00



Pierce County Library System

Board Report - Budget to Actual by Object

Report as of: 12/31/2012

Printed on: 12/27/2012 Page 3 of 6

FUND: GENERAL FUND (01)

Object Year-To-Date

Actual

2012

Budget

Encumbrances Balance Expend

%Actual

December

EXPENSE ACCOUNTS

54501  RENTALS/LEASES - BUILDINGS  201,400.00  88,923.12  20,573.36  91,903.52  54.4  0.00

54502  RENTAL/LEASE - EQUIPMENT  69,300.00  38,809.29  3,443.85  27,046.86  61.0  2,159.29

54600  INSURANCE  156,000.00  52,179.27  0.00  103,820.73  33.4  80,770.86

54700  ELECTRICITY  220,000.00  235,195.88  0.00 (15,195.88)  106.9  15,468.07

54701  NATURAL GAS  18,000.00  14,739.64  0.00  3,260.36  81.9  284.75

54702  WATER  25,500.00  30,265.01  0.00 (4,765.01)  118.7  1,293.90

54703  SEWER  23,500.00  24,118.90  0.00 (618.90)  102.6  379.32

54704  REFUSE  22,500.00  23,378.07  0.00 (878.07)  103.9  75.92

54800  GENERAL REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE  194,140.00  287,190.93  13,507.70 (106,558.63)  154.9  20,958.55

54801  CONTRACTED MAINTENANCE  686,900.00  548,399.32  165,291.27 (26,790.59)  103.9 -16,334.38

54803  MAINT. TELECOM EQUIPMENT  32,000.00  33,011.41  21,031.67 (22,043.08)  168.9  32,867.00

54900  REGISTRATIONS  35,675.00  18,476.15  7,602.25  9,596.60  73.1  0.00

54901  DUES AND MEMBERSHIPS  30,740.00  32,776.00  125.00 (2,161.00)  107.0  55.00

54902  TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS  29,000.00  27,892.63  0.00  1,107.37  96.2  0.00

54903  LICENSES AND FEES  30,480.00  25,813.67  0.00  4,666.33  84.7  2,397.63

54904  MISCELLANEOUS  900.00  2,413.41  0.00 (1,513.41)  268.2  31.65

54905  EVENT REGISTRATION  288.00  1,122.00  0.00 (834.00)  389.6  0.00

54906  INTERNAL TRAINING  0.00  4,975.00  0.00 (4,975.00)  0.0  0.00

54914  UNALLOCATED MID YR SAVINGS  440,401.00  0.00  0.00  440,401.00  0.0  0.00

55100  INTERGOVERMENTAL  850.00  843.14  0.00  6.86  99.2  0.00

56400  MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT  0.00  10,940.00  0.00 (10,940.00)  0.0  10,940.00

59700  TRANSFERS OUT  814,563.00  814,563.00  0.00  0.00  100.0  814,563.00

ALL OTHER EXPENSES  8,903,346.00  7,478,936.36  310,282.08  1,114,127.56  87.5  1,221,985.91

TOTAL FOR EXPENSE ACCOUNTS  25,179,342.63  27,152,095.00  310,282.08  93.9  1,662,470.29  2,645,099.30 

NET SURPLUS / DEFICIT  2,102,356.98  0.00 (310,282.08) (1,792,074.90)  0.0 (2,599,890.81)



Pierce County Library System

Board Report - Budget to Actual by Object

Report as of: 12/31/2012

Printed on: 12/27/2012 Page 4 of 6

FUND: SPECIAL PURPOSE FUND (10)

Object Year-To-Date

Actual

2012

Budget

Encumbrances Balance Expend

%Actual

December

EXPENSE ACCOUNTS

ALL OTHER EXPENSES  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.0  0.00

TOTAL FOR EXPENSE ACCOUNTS  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.0  0.00  0.00 

NET SURPLUS / DEFICIT  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.0  0.00 



Pierce County Library System

Board Report - Budget to Actual by Object

Report as of: 12/31/2012

Printed on: 12/27/2012 Page 5 of 6

FUND: DEBT SERVICE FUND (20)

Object Year-To-Date

Actual

2012

Budget

Encumbrances Balance Expend

%Actual

December

REVENUE ACCOUNTS

31112  PROPERTY TAXES DELINQUENT  0.00  0.64  0.00 (0.64)  0.0  0.00

TAXES:  0.00  0.64  0.00 (0.64)  0.0  0.00

36110  INVESTMENT INCOME  0.00  98.59  0.00 (98.59)  0.0  0.00

CHARGES OTHER:  0.00  98.59  0.00 (98.59)  0.0  0.00

TOTAL FOR REVENUE ACCOUNTS  99.23  0.00  0.00  0.0 (99.23) 0.00 

NET SURPLUS / DEFICIT  99.23  0.00  0.00 (99.23)  0.0  0.00 



Pierce County Library System

Board Report - Budget to Actual by Object

Report as of: 12/31/2012

Printed on: 12/27/2012 Page 6 of 6

FUND: CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS FUND (30)

Object Year-To-Date

Actual

2012

Budget

Encumbrances Balance Expend

%Actual

December

REVENUE ACCOUNTS

29150  USE OF FUND BALANCE-BUDGET  1,630,997.00  1,630,997.00  0.00  0.00  100.0  0.00

33891  SHARED COSTS  0.00  205,919.94  0.00 (205,919.94)  0.0  0.00

36110  INVESTMENT INCOME  0.00  1,297.51  0.00 (1,297.51)  0.0  0.00

36700  FOUNDATION DONATIONS  0.00  126,020.00  0.00 (126,020.00)  0.0  0.00

36997  PRIOR YEAR'S REFUNDS  0.00  49,145.10  0.00 (49,145.10)  0.0  0.00

36998  E-RATE REIMBURSEMENT  0.00  116,000.00  0.00 (116,000.00)  0.0  0.00

 1,630,997.00  2,129,379.55  0.00 (498,382.55)  130.6 CHARGES OTHER:  0  

39700  TRANSFERS IN  814,563.00  814,563.00  0.00  0.00  100.0  814,563.00

TOTAL FOR REVENUE ACCOUNTS  2,943,942.55  2,445,560.00  0.00  120.4 (498,382.55) 814,563.00 

EXPENSE ACCOUNTS

53100  OFFICE/OPERATING SUPPLIES  1,200.00  7,858.31  0.00 (6,658.31)  654.9  0.00

53500  MINOR EQUIPMENT  6,100.00  11,227.91  0.00 (5,127.91)  184.1  0.00

53501  FURNISHINGS  49,500.00  189,689.77  8,936.88 (149,126.65)  401.3  15,897.72

53502  PC HARDWARE  0.00  72,641.47  0.00 (72,641.47)  0.0  0.00

54100  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  227,000.00  210,971.78  80,687.02 (64,658.80)  128.5  8,014.72

54101  LEGAL SERVICES  700.00  16,041.23  0.00 (15,341.23)  2,291.6  0.00

54400  ADVERTISING  1,500.00  1,392.55  0.00  107.45  92.8  88.15

54600  INSURANCE  2,000.00  0.00  0.00  2,000.00  0.0  0.00

54800  GENERAL REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE  7,000.00  44,720.90  2,012.27 (39,733.17)  667.6  1,537.07

54801  CONTRACTED MAINTENANCE  0.00  17,539.25  38.45 (17,577.70)  0.0  0.00

54903  LICENSES AND FEES  3,200.00  1,764.66  0.00  1,435.34  55.1  0.00

54912  CONTINGENCY/RESERVE  65,000.00  0.00  0.00  65,000.00  0.0  0.00

56200  BUILDINGS & BLDG IMPROVEMENTS  820,400.00  424,294.53  302,928.75  93,176.72  88.6  9,863.83

56201  CONSTRUCTION  179,100.00  121,063.08  96,677.92 (38,641.00)  121.6  33,749.90

56202  ELECTRICAL  40,900.00  60,161.19  36,469.00 (55,730.19)  236.3  0.00

56203  FLOORING  26,700.00  11,304.18  43,715.87 (28,320.05)  206.1  245.06

56204  PAINTING AND WALL TREATMENTS  38,000.00  10,904.99  0.00  27,095.01  28.7  0.00

56205  ROOFING  161,660.00  261,957.89  0.00 (100,297.89)  162.0  0.00

56300  IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDGS  17,500.00  0.00  0.00  17,500.00  0.0  0.00

56400  MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT  442,200.00  122,047.16  33,592.91  286,559.93  35.2  0.00

56401  VEHICLES  61,900.00  60,197.59  0.00  1,702.41  97.2  0.00

56402  HVAC  214,000.00  209,625.57  21,285.76 (16,911.33)  107.9  0.00

56403  TELECOM EQUIPMENT  80,000.00  0.00  0.00  80,000.00  0.0  0.00

TOTAL FOR EXPENSE ACCOUNTS  1,855,404.01  2,445,560.00  626,344.83  101.5 (36,188.84) 69,396.45 

NET SURPLUS / DEFICIT  1,088,538.54  0.00 (626,344.83) (462,193.71)  0.0  745,166.55 



































 

 

Neel Parikh, Executive Director  3005 112
th

 St East  Tacoma, Washington 98446-2215  253.548-3300  FAX 253.537.4600 
www.piercecountylibrary.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 Date: December 20, 2012 

 To: Chair Linda Ishem and Members of the Board 

 From: Neel Parikh, Executive Director 

 Subject:  University Place Condominium Fees Update 

 
We are still in the process of determining the condominium fees related to the library at University 
Place.  This is taking quite a lot of time to divide up the costs in the building.  It is additionally 
complicated by the fact that there are three separate elements where condominium fees are 
connected:  
 

 The common areas ( we are responsible for 24.87% of expenses) 

 The atrium (we are responsible for 50% of expenses)  

 The parking (percentage still to be determined) 
 

We will bring you up to date on this matter when we have further information. 
 
 
  

 

  



 

 

 Date: December 20, 2012 

 To: Chair Linda Ishem and members of the Board of Trustees 

 From: Mary Getchell, Marketing & Community Relations Director 

 Subject: Public Library Association E-books Webinar 

 

 

This week Lisa Bitney and I participated in a Public Library Association (PLA) webinar: “E-

Book Action: Inform and Inspire Your Community.” The webinar focused on communications 

efforts regarding the e-book blockade by the six major publishers’ unwillingness to allow 

libraries to participate in the e-book marketplace. Four of the major publishers are currently not 

selling e-books to libraries and two are selling at inflated prices or with strict restrictions.  

 

Lisa talked about our customers’ strong interest in checking out e-books, based upon our huge 

growth in circulation of e-books. She balanced that with the frustration and surprise from our 

customers about our slim offerings. Lisa echoed that frustration in her description of staff 

concerns. 

 

I discussed our communications contemplation regarding whether, what, and when to 

communicate regarding the e-book blockade, and our planning and implementation of our e-

book communications plan, a.k.a. the Scrooge Communications Plan. I discussed the strategy to 

focus on the public and inform, educate, and engage them with a grassroots campaign. Our 

strategy also includes pointing to the equity and access issues posed with the blockade coupled 

with the role of libraries in bridging the digital divide for the public. Using a variety of tactics 

our strategy pivoted on gaining attention and being provocative. Our presentation is attached. 

 

Jo Budler, State Librarian, Kansas State Library, spoke about the statewide consortium they 

created to help lessen the effects of the blockade. She also discussed a Facebook page they 

launched to inform residents. 

 

Larra Clark, Director, Program on Networks, American Library Association, and Vailey Oelke, 

Library Director, Multnomah County Libraries, gave an overview of the e-book issue. They also 

discussed an E-book Media & Communications Toolkit PLA produced for libraries to use. 

 

Nearly 300 participants attended the webinar; with some of those having several additional 

people listening to the presentations. Participants included front line staff, communications 

professionals, and library directors/administrators. Many of the questions and interest focused on 

media relations and administration and public response to Pierce County Library’s Scrooge 

Communications Plan. Participants were very appreciative of the information from the webinar 

and complimentary of the communications approaches. You may view the full presentation at 

http://www.ala.org/pla/onlinelearning/webinars/archive/ebookaction.  

http://www.ala.org/pla/onlinelearning/webinars/archive/ebookaction
http://www.ala.org/pla/onlinelearning/webinars/archive/ebookaction


Lisa Bitney, Reading & Materials Director 
 
Mary Getchell, Marketing &  
Community Relations Director 



2,311 
0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

Year 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 YTD

Downloads



2,311 8,756 
0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

Year 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 YTD

Downloads



2,311 8,756 
33,959 

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

Year 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 YTD

Downloads



2,311 8,756 
33,959 

162,232 

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

Year 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 YTD

Downloads



2,311 8,756 
33,959 

162,232 

292,767 

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

Year 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 YTD

Downloads











 Research 

 Seek ∙ Read ∙ Listen 

  

 Evaluate 

 Change ∙ Constant ∙ Credibility 

 

 Plan 

 Goals ∙ Strategy  

 



Communications Goals 

1. Inform customers/potential 
customers. 

 

2. Encourage contact with 
publishers: we want e-books. 

 

3. Improve e-book selection with 
marketplace prices. 

 



Audiences 

• Publishers 

• Customers 

• Board of Trustees 

• Staff 

• Friends 

• Foundation Board of Directors 

• General public/potential 
customers 

• Media 
 



Strategy 

• Focus on the public 

• Inform, educate, engage 

• Focus on equity, access, 
libraries critical to bridging 
digital divide 

• Use variety of tactics 

• Gain attention, be provocative 



Key Messages 

1. Publishers not selling e-books to 
libraries, including Pierce County 
Library System, that’s giving 
residents a raw deal.  

2. Customers demanding e-books 
and publishers are locking them 
out. 

3. Major book publishers 
blackballing libraries completely 
or holding them hostage with 
inflated prices and strict 
restrictions. 

 



Tactics and 

Activities 

Talking points for staff 
with encouragement 
to engage customers 

 

Online: 

• Web ad 

• Web page with email 
message for public to 
publishers 

• Listserv message 



Tactics and Activities 

In libraries:  

• Huge poster 

• Postcards for customers 
to publishers 

• Whiteboards 

Mass media: 

• Guest editorial 

• News release, interviews 

Social media: 

• Facebook 

• Twitter 
 



 Number of postcards picked up. 

 Number of email cc’s. 

 Running of guest editorial. 

 Number of news stories. 

 Public informed. 

Publishers sell to libraries at fair-market and trade 
prices. 

 



 

 

3005 112 th St E  *  Tacoma, WA 98446-2215  *  (253) 548-3300  *  FAX (253) 537-4600 
www.piercecountylibrary.org  

 

 

 

 

 

 Date: January 2
nd

, 2013 

 To: Linda Ishem and members of the Board of Trustees 

     From:  David Durante, Customer Experience Manager 
 

 Subject: Paul G. Allen Foundation Grant 

 

 

In 2011 the Foundation Office and the Virtual Services Department collaborated on the application of a 

grant from the Paul G. Allen Foundation. In this grant we sought funding to help deliver services to our 

customers virtually. This particular grant focuses on reader’s advisory but will allow us to create a 

platform that will be able to deliver many different types of services to our customers through our 

website. 

 

The idea is that as people’s daily lives become busier and more complex, it becomes increasingly 

important for public libraries to find imaginative, intuitive and effective ways to guide library users to 

the resources that best fit their needs. The platform will target specific audiences and direct them 

through a series of activities, tasks and progressive incentives leading to their eventual mastery in each 

track. Visitors will be able to earn virtual badges for bragging rights and/or progressive prize 

incentives, like bookmarks, tote bags, or books. The gaming format allows participants to learn about 

new books of interest, join a community of readers, and explore databases all without making a trip to 

the library. 

 

In December we were notified that Pierce County Library System was awarded $150,000 to fund this 

project. While this project was part of our future goals these funds will allow us to take something that 

would have taken 5 years and have it done in 2 years.  

 

A great deal of thanks goes out to not only the Paul G. Allen Foundation but also to Lynne Hoffman, 

Foundation Director, Alice Knox, Sr. IT Specialist, Patrick McVicker, Virtual Experience Librarian, 

and Jami Schwarzwalder, Teen Librarian for putting the application together.  

 

We look forward to talking to you in the future about the progress of our work. 

 

 

Thank you. 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

3005 112 th St E  *  Tacoma, WA 98446-2215  *  (253) 548-3300  *  FAX (253) 537-4600 
www.piercecountylibrary.org  

 













 

 

3005 112 th St. E.  *  Tacoma, WA 98446-2215  *  253-548-3300  *  FAX 253-537-4600 
piercecountylibrary.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 Date: December 31, 2012 

 To: Chair Linda Ishem and members of the Board of Trustees 

 From: Sally Porter Smith 

 Subject: Key Center Library Reopens February 4, 2012 

 

A month ahead of schedule and on budget, Key Center Library will reopen on Monday February 4, 2012.  On 

Saturday, February 2
nd

, the Pierce County Library System Foundation will host a sneak preview for donors 

who, as of Monday, December 31, 2012, raised $33,888.  These funds will add computers, an AWE learning 

computer for school age children) station as well as tables, task chairs, reading chair, displays and cyber bar in 

the flexible use meeting room. Additional items are being considered based on funding received.   On Saturday, 

February 16
th

, the Library, Pierce County Library Foundation and Key Center Friends will host an open house 

to welcome people in the community to visit and learn about their expanded Key Center Library. 

 

 

























 
 

3005 112th St. E.  *  Tacoma, WA 98446-2215  *  253-548-3300  *  FAX 253-537-4600 
piercecountylibrary.org 

 
 
 

 
 

 Date:  December 20, 2012 
 To:  Linda Ishem and members of the Board of Trustees 

 From: Mary Getchell, Marketing & Community Relations Director 

 Subject: Video Project of Customer Stories 
 
 

As a pro bono gift to Pierce County Library System, Emerald City Pictures produced two videos 
for our library system and residents. The videos gave a significant depiction of the real people 
who have very real and valuable experiences every day in our libraries. Their smiling faces and 
voices share the story of how we are helping to make a difference in people’s lives.  
 
The videos capture the smiles, actions, and feelings of customers’ experiences and rewards from 
Pierce County Library. The video highlighted success stories with people discussing how the 
Library has made a difference in their lives. It helped express people’s love for the Library and 
their stories will foster raising public awareness and knowledge about how the Library helps 
individuals and the community.  
 
We have posted the videos to our YouTube channel and website. In addition, I shared them with 
Urban Libraries Council’s public relations directors for libraries throughout the U.S. In coming 
weeks we will share further via our listserv with 25,000 subscribers, Facebook page, and Twitter 
account. 
 
View the videos on YouTube, We Love Pierce County Library Video 1 and 2: 
http://www.youtube.com/user/piercecountylibrary1#p/u 
 

 

 

 

 

  

http://www.youtube.com/user/piercecountylibrary1#p/u
http://www.youtube.com/user/piercecountylibrary1#p/u


 



 

 

3005 112 th St. E.  *  Tacoma, WA 98446-2215  *  253-548-3300  *  FAX 253-537-4600 
piercecountylibrary.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 Date: December 31, 2012 

 To: Chair Linda Ishem and members of the Board of Trustees 

 From: Sally Porter Smith 

 Subject: PC and Print Management System 

 

Polaris Library Systems in partnership with Envisionware, Inc. was selected for the PC Time and Print 

Management System for PCLS public computers.  The integrated system will replace the honor system for 

customers paying for their computer printing and a 10 year old computer reservation management system.   

The new system features a user friendly interface, multiple options for self-service and efficient management of 

public printing which will eliminate runaway print jobs and people printing without paying.  Customers will 

have the ability to print choosing from multiple paper sizes, black and white or color printing, and duplex 

printing.  Self-service pay options include cash, debit or credit card.  Wi-Fi printing will also be available to 

customers.   Furthermore, the integrated system allows PCLS to utilize existing self-check-out stations as print 

release stations and provide customers a new self-service option of paying library fines with cash utilizing 

existing cash vending units.  In libraries with limited space and lower volume printing, this allows a self-check- 

out station to be used for four functions and is an efficient use of work stations and space. 

The implementation team will be led by Keith Knutsen, Parkland Branch Manager who served as a team leader 

on the successful Telephone Implementation Team.  During January and early February, the team will work 

with the vendors and Information Technology staff to establish the core infrastructure and customization of the 

product.  The system will be tested in pilot libraries during late February and early March with deployment to 

the remaining libraries planned for late March and April.  The system is currently being used by other libraries 

throughout the United States.   

 

 



 



 

 

3005 112 th St. E.  *  Tacoma, WA 98446-2215  *  253-548-3300  *  FAX 253-537-4600 
piercecountylibrary.org 

 

 

 

 

 

Date:  December 31, 2012 

 

TO:  Chair Linda Ishem and members of the Board of Trustees 

 

FROM:  Georgia Lomax, Deputy Director 

 

RE:  2012 Operational changes for efficiency, savings and improvement 

 

Pierce County Library values being a careful steward of tax payer money and regularly looks for 

ways to be efficient and save money. It also reflects our understanding that the public expects 

tax-funded agencies to make internal changes and operate as efficiently as possible now more 

than ever. 

 

PCLS regularly makes changes that allow money and staff time to be reallocated to different 

priorities, so last year we began documenting this work to show the careful choices and creative 

thinking occurring as we determine what the Library provides, how it does things and where 

limited resources are used. This work helps the Library address the challenges of today’s 

economic environment which require it to continually evaluate and change, and to demonstrate 

the good management and operational practices expected of a tax-supported institution that must 

adapt to changing funding realities, and public expectations and lifestyles. 

 

Attached is a selection of operational changes implemented in 2012.  

 

This chart is not intended to provide a cost/benefit analysis of the activities. In some cases there 

were purchase costs or contracts, in others staff time was saved in one department but added to 

another. Projected costs and workload impacts are assessed in advance during planning and 

decision-making phases so that changes and choices can be made in context of the whole to 

ensure there are overall benefits from savings, reductions in recurring costs, increased capacity 

or customer service improvements that meet library priorities. While a change may add to staff 

time needed in one area, a different change will have increased capacity by saving time in 

another.  

 

For major projects, such as the new phone system, the media security project or the PAC HVAC 

replacement, in-depth analysis of resource impacts and costs is done. 

 

During the board meeting I will briefly highlight a number of operational changes and their 

results. Justin Moser, Reading & Materials Driver Supervisor, will join me to share the work of 

the delivery team during the past year. 

 

 

  



2013 Budget Document 

Operating Lean 

Operational Changes for Efficiency, Savings and Improvement 

 

Pierce County Library is building an organizational cultural and staff that learns, adapts, looks 

forward, and continually improves processes, services and themselves. An organization and staff 

with these skills are better prepared and able to adapt and evolve, and have the resiliency and 

judgment to work well in a fast paced and changing environment. The Library recruits, hires, 

trains and coaches to ensure it has staff with qualities that will help the organization grow and 

reach its goals, and offer services its community and customers value. 

These skills, combined with constant attention to finding and implementing efficiencies, changes 

and improvements, allow the Library to save and reallocate resources (especially staff time and 

money), and build capacity. Finding ways to do work faster, or to do less work to achieve the 

desired result, frees time and resources to be used on the activities, tasks and services that best 

support the Library’s service to the community.  

To provide the best service with the existing level of staffing, it is critical that each individual 

spends as much of their time working at the highest value level in their job. Reducing routine 

tasks and focusing efforts on activities that require skill, knowledge and especially interaction 

with customers or community, is a priority as the Library works to spend its finite allotment of 

time, money and resources on the right work and the right services. 

A number of approaches are used to make operational changes for efficiency, savings and 

improvement: 

 Stop what is no longer important, necessary or valued by the customer 

 Automate or use technology and time saving tools 

 Work differently to improve on how things are done 

 Empower customers to help themselves 

 Renegotiate to find the best deals 

 Generate revenue to supplement tax-provided funding 

Attached is a selection of operational changes implemented in 2012. 



December 31, 2012 

2012 OPERATIONAL CHANGES FOR EFFICIENCY, SAVINGS AND IMPROVEMENT 

STOP 

EFFECTIVE 
DATE 

ACTION/CHANGE RESULTS/BENEFITS DEPARTMENT(S) 
SAVINGS 

2012 2013 

5/2012 Stopped printing the day of week on holiday 
closure signs and posters 

 Reduces design staff time by 30 
minutes/holiday 

 Posters/signs can be used more 
than once 

 Saves materials and waste 
 

Marketing & Community 
Relations 

2.5 hr/yr 4.5 hr/yr 

3/2012 Stopped advertising in Dex phone books (print & 
online) 

 Eliminates advertising fee 
 

Marketing & Community 
Relations 

$1622 $2117 

7/1/12 Stopped repairing old, outdated computers with no 
value or resale value 

 Reduces IT Tech time spent 
updating and fixing old 
equipment (3 hrs/month) 

Information Technology 18 hrs/yr 36 hrs/yr 

2012 Eliminated use of holds and transfer slips  Eliminated 2 steps in holds 
processing process 

 Eliminated storage and handling 
of paper in branches 

 Reduced paper waste in 
branches 

Customer Experience  2100 
hrs/yr  

2100 
hrs/yr 

2012 Reduced duplication of print and electronic 
reference materials 

 Reduced budget while 
maintaining access to reference 
materials 

Customer Experience  $22,000  

  



December 31, 2012 

2012 OPERATIONAL CHANGES FOR EFFICIENCY, SAVINGS AND IMPROVEMENT 

AUTOMATE 

EFFECTIVE 
DATE ACTION/CHANGE RESULTS/BENEFITS DEPARTMENT(S) 

SAVINGS 

2012 2013 

5/1/2012 Replaced postcard printer with  
more reliable, standard model 

 Decreased staff time redoing post 
cards (1 hr/mo) 

 Improved readability for customers 

Information Technology 8 hrs/yr 36 hrs/yr 

1/1/2012 Upgraded Wi-Fi system  Enhanced reliability reduced 
maintenance needed (3 hrs/mo) 

 More reliable experience for 
customers 

 Enhance reporting capability 

 More access points for customer use 

 Broader reach to areas in buildings 

Information Technology 
 
 

36 hrs/yr 36 hrs/yr 

8/1/2012 Implemented Internet filtering with 
a software service 

 Reduced the number of servers by 18 
(Servers will not be replaced in 2013 as 
scheduled. Saves $3000/server) 

Information Technology $0 $54,000 

6/1/2012 Implemented Basecamp 
Collaborative Software 

 Increased coordination, collaboration, 
communication and improved project 
management for IT Projects 

 Saves staff time by consolidating work 
in one place (1 hr/wk) 

 
 
 
Information Technology 
 

 
 
 
30 hrs.  

 
 
 
52 hrs. 

5/1/2012 Implemented “virtual machine” 
(VM) servers 

 Eliminated 20 physical servers and 
need to maintain and replace 
equipment ($3000 per server) 

 Saves staff time by providing quick and 
easy ability to configure virtual servers 
from any location  

 Saves electricity 

 Lowers cooling load 

 
 
 
Information Technology 

$60,000  $15,000 

6/1/2012 Installed temperature alert/power 
monitoring 

 Saved staff time (1 hr/mo) 

 Enhance the ability to monitor power 
status and temperature at branch 
locations 

 Quicker response to 
temperature/power issues in branches 

Information Technology 
 
 
 
Facilities 

7 hrs. 12 hrs. 



December 31, 2012 

6/20/12 Implemented Raiser’s Edge, fund 
raising software 

 Eliminated some banking fees for 
donations made by credit cards 

 More robust fundraising capability 
 

Fund Development 
 

$250 $ 1,000 

6/20/2012 Relocated Foundation webpage and 
fundraising software to “the cloud” 

 Eliminated one physical server  and 
need to maintain and replace 
equipment ($3000 per server) 

 Saves IT Support time  

 Saves electricity  

 Lowers cooling load 
 

 
 
 
Information Technology 
 

$3000 $0 

9/2012 Installed security monitors on 
exterior HVAC units at 7 libraries 

 Stop damage due to copper theft for a 
total of 27 HVAC units (repair costs are 
$8000/unit) 

 

Facilities $8000 $8000 

1/2012 Implemented online recruiting, 
applicant tracking, scheduling hiring 
software (OpenHire) 

 Reduced time from job posting to hire 

 Saves staff time through applicant self- 
service, templates & auto-notification 
(5 hrs/posting) 

 24/7 access for applicants 

 Time savings allows SE staff to “add 
value” in support of hiring supervisors 
 

 
Staff Experience 

 
330 hrs/yr 

 
250 hrs/yr 

2011 Offered Teen Summer Reading as 
an online program 

 Doubled participation by teens 

 Eliminated most printing costs 
 

 
Marketing and 
Community Relations 

 
 
$3,000  

 
 
$3000 

2012 Increased and continued 
transitioning Our Own Expressions 
teen contest from a paper to online 
submission process and automating 
administrative processes 

 80% of entries submitted online 

 Reduced staff time in tracking 
submissions, facilitating judging 
process (distributing and summarizing 
judges’ results), reporting results and 
preparing documents for publication 

 
Customer Experience 

 
30 hrs/yr  
 

 
30 hrs/yr 
 
 

 

  



December 31, 2012 

2012 OPERATIONAL CHANGES FOR EFFICIENCY, SAVINGS AND IMPROVEMENT 

WORK DIFFERENTLY 

EFFECTIVE 
DATE 

ACTION/CHANGE RESULTS/BENEFITS DEPARTMENT(S) 
SAVINGS 

2012 2013 

6/1/2012 Stocked IT vans with equipment 
needed to complete most work orders 
on first visit to branch 

 Reduces staff time by eliminating 
extra trips between PAC and 
branches 

 Saves gas. 

 Reduces time IT equipment in 
branches is unavailable for use 

 
 

Information Technology 
 

28 hrs/yr 52 hrs/yr 

4/1/2012 Laptop labs updated by Branch Staff  Saved Senior IT Tech travel time 
(5 hrs/visit/location) 

 Saved gas and mileage costs 

 More frequent updates provide 
improved customer experience 

 

Information Technology 
 

80 hrs. 120 hrs. 

8/1/2012 Produced Library and Foundation 
Annual Report as an online document 

 Eliminates printing cost and 
materials 

 Saves staff printing time 

 Wider distribution by email and 
listserv 

 24/7 access 
 
 

Marketing & 
Community Relations 

$2,180 $2,500 

12/2012 Produce and access Board of Trustees 
meeting packets digitally instead of as 
printed documents, and archive 
electronically 

 Reduced staff time to create, 
copy, mail meeting packet (7 
hrs/packet, 14 packets/yr) 

 Eliminated materials, postage 
and binding costs 

 Improved convenience and 
accessibility – full content on 
website and available 24/7 

 
 

Executive Office 98 hrs/yr 
 
 
$426.27 

98 hrs/yr 
 
 
$430 



December 31, 2012 

1/2012 Cross trained existing staff to 
substitute as delivery driver 

 Saved 156 hours in substitute 
staff time by reassigning staff to 
delivery when needed 

 

Reading & Materials $2,332 $2500 

1/2012 Changed scheduled start times for 
delivery drivers 

 Routes completed in the 
assigned number of work hours 

 Eliminated most substitute hours 
and overtime hours needed to 
complete daily work 

 More department productivity as 
drivers are able to help with 
other departmental work upon 
return 

 Branches receive deliveries in 
morning at a planned time, 
which allows proper staff 
scheduling 

 Freed staff time to manage 
loading dock and “in PAC” 
deliveries 

Reading & Materials  
 
$9500 
 
 
300 hrs/yr 
 

 
 
$9750 
 
 
600 hrs/yr 

1/2012 Streamlined delivery crate sorting 
process during driver routes 

 Reduced # of “crate lifts” 

 Improved ergonomics 

 Reduced # of crates needed to 
system deliveries 

 Reduced staff time for sorting 

Reading & Materials  
 
 
 
100 hrs/yr 

 
 
 
 
208 hrs/yr 

8/2012 Replaced 17-year-old Sumner Library 
roof with one that meets energy star 
and LEED standards 

 Reduced energy costs through 
improved solar reflectance and 
insulation 

 Reduced repairs and 
maintenance costs 

 
 

Facilities $6,380 $10,000 

8/2012 Replaced 17-year-old HVAC at Sumner 
Library (7 units) 

 Improved energy efficiency on all 
HVAC units, from 10.5 to 13 SEER 
(Seasonal Energy Efficiency 
Rating) 

Facilities SEER rating improved 2.5 
on all units(Cost savings 
realized at end of year 

 

8/2012 Streamlined delivery of cleaning and 
custodial supplies to branches using 
delivery and weekend lead 

 Supplies transported more 
efficiently as part of daily 
delivery on weekdays and by 

Facilities 300 hrs/yr 780 hrs/yr 



December 31, 2012 

department lead on weekends 

 Saved gas and travel time on 
weekdays 

 Floor crew has more time to 
clean branch carpets and floor 

2012 Increased the number of vendors paid 
on Purchase Cards (P-Card) by 10%. 
Each vendor paid by P-Card provider. 

 Reduced cost of issuing 
individual warrants to each 
vendor (110 vendors/mo @ $15/ 
vendor warrant -- Industry 
Standard based on dollar savings 
rather than time savings. 
Includes staff time, machine 
costs, postage, etc.) 

 Eliminated producing IRS form 
1099 to each vendor paid by P-
card 

 Reduced staff time processing 
bills in departments (2 hr/mo x 7 
departments) 

 

Finance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All Departments 

$19,800 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
168 hr/yr 

$21,780 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
168 hr/yr 

2012 Implemented single, centralized Help 
desk in 9 libraries with more than one 
public service desk 

 Reduced number of staff 
required to staff public Help 
Desk while maintaining public 
services 

 Increased librarian time available 
to conduct outreach, teach 
classes, provide programs, 
develop services 

Customer Experience  3,016 hrs/yr 3,016 
hrs/yr 

2012 Used color-coded holds slips to 
identify unclaimed holds to be pulled 
(pilot project, South Hill) 

 Staff visually identifies by color 
items needing pulled without 
viewing each item for pull date. 

 Reduced time needed to pull 
unclaimed holds 

Customer Experience – 
South Hill 

119 staff hrs/yr  119 hrs/yr 

2012 Powder-coated and reused 18 feet of 
surplus shelving for Key Center Library 

 Eliminated need to buy new 
shelving 

 Repurposed surplus shelving 

 Eliminated materials from waste 
stream 

 

Customer Experience – 
Key Center 

$1,400 $0 



December 31, 2012 

 

 

2012 Reused 12 feet of surplus shelving for 
Summit Library 

 Eliminated need to buy new 
shelving 

 Repurposed surplus shelving 

 Eliminated materials from waste 
stream 

Customer Experience -- 
Summit 

$1,000 $0 

2012 Reused 2 surplus recessed computer 
workstations at Milton Library to 
respond to customer requests 

 Eliminated need to buy new 
computer workstations 

 Repurposed surplus furniture 

 Increased privacy for computer 
users 

 Provided 2 larger workstations 
for customers 

 Eliminated materials from waste 
stream 

Customer Experience – 
Milton/Edgewood 

$3,000  
 
$0 

2012 Reused office furniture to create 
Virtual Services Team room  

 Eliminated need to buy new 
computer workstations 

 Repurposed surplus furniture 

 Eliminated materials from waste 
stream 

 

Customer Experience  $3,000 $0 

2012 Reused office furniture for staff work 
areas at Lakewood Library 

 Created efficient workspace for 
SBA staff 

 Repurposed surplus furniture 
and shelving 

 Created Adult Services librarian 
work area 

 Improved backroom workflow 
and materials handling for Pages 

 Eliminated materials from waste 
stream 

Customer Experience $3,000 $0 

2012 Swapped acrylic display units among 
the branches 

 Branches refreshed their display 
units from items 

 Reused over 100 display units 

 Eliminated materials from waste 
stream 

Customer Experience $1200 $0 



December 31, 2012 

2012 OPERATIONAL CHANGES FOR EFFICIENCY, SAVINGS AND IMPROVEMENT 

EMPOWER 

EFFECTIVE 
DATE 

ACTION/CHANGE RESULTS/BENEFITS DEPARTMENT(S) 
SAVINGS 

2012 2013 

1/2012 Added American Express to E-Pay accepted credit 
card list 
 

 Reduced staff time as 
customers able to self-serve 
(673+ AE transactions x 5 
min/transaction) 

 Increased number of 
customers able to pay online 

 

Customer Experience 56 Hrs/yr 65 Hrs/yr 

1/2012 Added Discover Card to E-Pay accepted credit card 
list 
 

 Reduced staff time as 
customers able to self-serve 
(231+ Discover transactions 
x 5 min/transaction) 

 Increased number of 
customers able to pay online 

 

Customer Experience 20 Hrs/yr 25 Hrs/yr 

1/2012 Provide staff with direct access/self-service to 
payroll and job-related information through Online 
timesheets and Employee Services Online accounts 
 

 Saves 20 hrs/wk PY 
Specialist FTE, benefits 

 Saves at minimum 8 hrs/mo 
responding to employee 
requests for Payroll and 
Human Resources 
information 

Finance 
 

1040 hrs/yr 
 
96 hrs/yr 
 

1040 hrs/yr 
 
96 hrs/yr 
 
 

1/2012 Provide staff with direct access/self-service 
through Employee Services Online account (job-
related information) 

 Saves time by allowing 
individuals to easily access 
needed information rather 
than requiring Staff 
Experience staff to provide it 
(Minimum 10 calls/wk, 15 
min/call)  

Staff Experience 130 hrs/yr 130 hrs/yr 

2012 Customers check out and check in DVDs from 
Movie Machine at Lakewood  (101,008 items) 

 Eliminates need for staff to 
check out and check in materials 

 Eliminates staff involvement in 
loading and retrieving materials 
from machines 

Customer Experience -- 
Lakewood 

1683 hrs/yr 1683 hrs/yr 



December 31, 2012 

 Provides self-serve option for 
customers 

2012 Customers check out and check in DVDs from 
Movie Machine Bonney Lake (48,466 items) 

 Eliminates need for staff to 
check out and check in materials 

 Eliminates staff involvement in 
loading and retrieving materials 
from machines 

 Provides self-serve option for 
customers 

Customer Experience – 
Bonney Lake 

807 hrs/yr 807 hrs/yr 

2012 Customers check out and check in DVDs from 
Movie Machine at Fife (33,929 items, partial year) 

 Eliminates need for staff to 
check out and check in materials 

 Eliminates staff involvement in 
loading and retrieving materials 
from machines 

 Provides self-serve option for 
customers 

Customer Experience -- 
Fife 

565 hrs/yr 600 hrs/yr 

2012 Customers check out and check in DVDs from 
Movie Machine at Graham (30,181 items, partial 
year) 

 Eliminates need for staff to 
check out and check in materials 

 Eliminates staff involvement in 
loading and retrieving materials 
from machines 

 Provides self-serve option for 
customers 

Customer Experience -- 
Graham 

503 hrs/yr 600 hrs/yr 

2012 Customers check out and check in DVDs from 
Movie Machines at Gig Harbor (48,240 items) 

 Eliminates need for staff to 
check out and check in materials 

 Eliminates staff involvement in 
loading and retrieving materials 
from machines 

 Provides self-serve option for 
customers 

Customer Experience – 
Gig Harbor 

804 hrs/yr 804 hrs/yr 

2012 Customers check out and check in DVDs from 
Movie Machines at South Hill (72,939 items items) 

 Eliminates need for staff to 
check out and check in materials 

 Eliminates staff involvement in 
loading and retrieving materials 
from machines 

 Provides self-serve option for 
customers 

Customer Experience – 
South Hill 

1216 hrs/yr 1216 hrs/yr 

 



December 31, 2012 

2012 OPERATIONAL CHANGES FOR EFFICIENCY, SAVINGS AND IMPROVEMENT 

RENEGOTIATE 

EFFECTIVE 
DATE 

ACTION/CHANGE RESULTS/BENEFITS DEPARTMENT(S) 
SAVINGS 

2012 2013 

6/2012 Changed Office Supplies Cooperative Agreement 
from State of Washington to NIPA 
 

 Eliminated delivery fees  

 Greater selection of items 

 Reduces need for storage space 
by allowing “Just in Time” (JIT) 
purchasing at all branches and 
PAC 

 

All $824 $1,414 

3/2012 Renegotiated waiving of bank service fees for Bank 
of America account  
 

 Eliminates fee on BoA banking 
account 

 

Finance $2,250 $2,700 

5/2012 Bid Landscaping and changed vendors  Reduced contract fee by 
$25,000 annually without 
reducing service level provided. 

 

Facilities $16,667 $25,000 

8/2012 Bid Custodial Supplies and changed vendors  Reduced cost for supplies by 12-
15% annually ($500/month) 

 Switched to environmentally 
friendly, fragrance free products 

 Reduced waste and usage 
through programmable 
automatic hand soap dispensers 
provided 

 Reduced use of paper towels 
3:1, using pre-programmed 
automatic dispenser 

 Free training on products 
provided to staff 

Facilities $2,500 $6,000 

 

 

  



December 31, 2012 

2012 OPERATIONAL CHANGES FOR EFFICIENCY, SAVINGS AND IMPROVEMENT 

GENERATE REVENUE 

EFFECTIVE 
DATE 

ACTION/CHANGE RESULTS/BENEFITS DEPARTMENT(S) 
SAVINGS 

2012 2013 

2011 Added American Express to E-Pay 
accepted credit card list 
 

 Increased number of customers 
able to pay online (673+) 

 Reduced staff time as more 
customers able to self-serve 

 
 
 
 

All  
 
$5,295 
 

 
 
$5,295 
 

2011 Added Discover to E-Pay accepted 
credit card list 
 

 Increased number of customers 
able to pay online (231+) 

 Reduced staff time as more 
customers able to self-serve 

 
 
 

All  
 
$1,962 

 
 
$1,962 

2012 Increased use of P-Cards (Purchasing 
cards) to make purchases. 

 Increase revenue by generating 
approximately 1% rebate of 
total dollars spend on card 

 Better cash management   

 Increased investment income 
 
 

All $23,411 $15,000 

1/2012 Contracted with direct mail library 
consortium for donor acquisition 
mailing 

 Added 692 of the 753 new 
donors for 2012 

 Total active donors tops 1000 
for the first time 

 Increased financial donations 
by $27,672 

 Saved staff time (20 hrs/wk) 
 
 
 

Fund Development $27,672 
 
 
 
 
 
1040 hrs/yr 

TBD 
 
 
 
 
 
1040 hrs/yr 

 

















 

 

 Date: January 2, 2013 

 To: Chair Linda Ishem and members of the Board of Trustees 

 From: Holly Gorski, Staff Experience Director 

 Subject: Core Skills and Qualities for PCLS Employees 

 

 

The Core Skills and Qualities (often referred to as the “9 Skills and Qualities”) are behavioral 

competencies that describe the qualities needed by all Pierce County Library System staff, 

regardless of position, in order to be successful in their work. 

 

Since their inception in 2008, the Core Skills and Qualities have been incorporated into our work 

lives in a variety of ways. The Library’s interview questions were rewritten to focus on them in 

order to help us select employees who already exhibit these traits; the Skills & Qualities are 

frequently discussed in staff meetings and incorporated into training; supervisors use this 

language when coaching their employees on performance issues; and last year, the Library 

introduced an interim performance evaluation based on the Core Skills & Qualities (a final 

version of this evaluation will be produced in 2013). 

 

Included with this memo is a list of the Core Skills and Qualities that includes “do” and “don’t” 

examples for staff. This is one of the original documents produced by the committee that created 

the Skills & Qualities in 2008. During the January Board of Trustees meeting, we will have an 

opportunity to discuss the Core Skills and Qualities further. Thank you. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

SKILLS/QUALITIES AND DEFINITIONS WHAT THIS LOOKS LIKE AT WORK (GENERAL “DOS” AND “DON’TS”) 

 Do . . .  Don’t . . .  

1. Customer Focus 
We (PCLS staff) strive to understand and 

exceed our customers’ expectations. We treat 

all people with courtesy and respect and are 

welcoming and approachable. We are aware 

of cultural differences that may impact how 

people prefer to experience the Library and 

take our cues from the customer to adapt our 

styles accordingly. 

 

Note: “customer” always means both 

coworkers and the public, including both 

current and potential library users. 

Consistently acknowledge all customers as soon as they 

enter the building/our work area. Let them know we 

are available (by greeting, smiling, offering to help – 

take the cue from the customer). 

 

Remember and show that the customer is more 

important than the rule or the task. Express empathy 

for customers and offer alternative solutions whenever 

possible. 

 

Save the time of the customer whenever possible. Look 

for ways to streamline our policies and procedures, to 

present materials effectively, to encourage customers 

to use the Library successfully on their own. 

 

Recognize that, and behave as if, our goal is a successful 

customer experience, not just the completion of our 

specific task. 

 

Express empathy for the customer and if difficulties 

arise offer alternative solutions. Follow up by exploring 

ways to prevent similar difficulties in the future. 

 

Anticipate customer needs and provide the right level 

of service for that customer (customize service). 

 

Demonstrate good listening skills. 

 

Promote Library services and programs by matching 

them to the customer’s interests.  

 

Seek ways to help non-English-speaking people and 

people with reading or learning challenges use our 

Libraries and access our services. 

Ignore customers by focusing too intently on the task in 

front of us. Look up! Be aware! 

 

Forget to wear our name tag or other staff 

identification. 

 

Adhere rigidly to rules regardless of situation. 

 

Assume we know what is best for customers. 

 

Treat customers’ inability to use the Library as their 

problem, instead of ours. 

 

Say “that’s not my job” or otherwise refuse to help 

customers. 

 

Act or speak in a condescending manner towards 

customers. 

 

Allow personal distractions to compromise our 

willingness or ability to address customer needs and 

expectations when we’re on the job. 



 

 Do . . .  Don’t . . .  

2. Teamwork 
We work effectively with our team, work 

group, and across organizational lines to 

accomplish the Library System’s goals. We 

build respectful relationships within and 

between units and among individuals. We 

encourage and support other staff. 

Offer to help co-workers in all positions as needed. 

 

Share information that others might find helpful in 

performing their own tasks. 

 

Contribute to achieving the organization’s goals. 

 

Build rapport among co-workers and other 

departments. 

 

Respect others’ ideas and abilities. 

 

Accept and consider suggestions from customers and 

colleagues for improvements in our work. 

 

Be dependable. 

 

Say “that’s not my job” or avoid offering assistance to 

others. 

 

Neglect our share of the work. 

 

Treat coworkers disrespectfully or dismiss differing 

opinions. 

 

Insist on our own point of view and/or refuse to 

compromise. 

 

Dismiss suggestions from customers or colleagues 

because “they just don’t get it.” 

3. Professional Integrity 
We project a professional attitude and image 

and adhere to a high standard of professional 

conduct. We value and respect customer 

confidentiality. 

Project a positive image of the Library to the 

community. 

 

Effectively explain and uphold the Library’s policies on 

customer confidentiality. 

 

Show pride in our work, conduct and appearance. 

Complain about the job and/or the workplace. 

 

Disseminate information that should be confidential 

according to Library policies. 

 

Act or dress in a manner that demonstrates a lack of 

respect for customers or is not conducive to 

accomplishing our work. 

 

Withhold or ignore information that affects the smooth 

operation of the library. 

 

4. Leadership  
We accept responsibility and make decisions 

appropriate to our position and the situation. 

We contribute, support and encourage new 

ideas. We demonstrate grace under pressure. 

Demonstrate a willingness to seek, explore and accept 

new ideas. 

 

Focus on the future instead of the past. 

 

Accept new decisions once they have been made. 

 

Stay calm in difficult situations such as handling angry 

customers and emergencies. 

 

Tell the truth and offer hope. 

 

Meet new ideas with disdain or be unwilling to explore 

new ways of thinking and doing things. 

 

Replay or dwell upon past disappointments or 

difficulties. 

 

Defer all decisions to other staff.  

 

Lose control in difficult situations. 

 

Blame others or refuse to accept responsibility. 



 

 Do . . .  Don’t . . .  

5. Communication 
We effectively communicate, both verbally 

and in writing. We listen to understand and 

use constructive approaches to resolving 

workplace issues. We freely share new ideas. 

Actively listen to others and paraphrase what they say 

to check for understanding. 

 

Tailor our message and its delivery to the audience and 

situation. 

 

Write and speak in a professional manner; convey our 

expectations clearly so that others are not left to guess. 

 

Provide and willingly receive effective feedback: 

address the situation, behavior, and its impact. 

 

Use a pleasant tone of voice appropriate for the 

situation. 

 

Assume that we understand without listening or asking 

for clarification. 

 

Forget to check our e-mail and the Staff Web Bulletin 

Board every shift. 

 

 

6. Problem Solving 
We develop effective approaches to address 

customer needs and solve problems. We use 

good judgment to resolve conflicts. We 

address customer behavior and issues when 

necessary. We are solution oriented. 

Rely on judgment over rules to help customers with 

special situations; use common sense. 

 

Always offer other service options to customers if we 

are unable to meet their specific need. Seek ways to be 

able to meet their needs in the future. 

 

Use actual data/evidence to support our 

recommendations and decisions. 

 

Look to non-library models as well as other libraries for 

possible solutions to library challenges. 

 

Rigidly enforce ‘the rules’ even when exceptions are 

appropriate.  

 

Ignore or contribute to problems. 

 

Contribute to or ignore a disruptive or dysfunctional 

workplace. 

7. Change and Learning 
We positively respond to organizational 

change and show a willingness to learn new 

ways to accomplish work. We are flexible. We 

take the initiative to look for ways to develop 

as individuals and to improve the Library 

System. We are strategic thinkers. 

Actively seek opportunities to improve Library 

operations and customer success. 

 

Stay current with new Library and technology trends 

and developments that may affect our positions.  

 

Readily adopt new policies and procedures. 

 

Be open to new ideas from all sources. 

 

Take responsibility for pursuing learning opportunities 

within the organization. 

 

Share what we’ve learned with others. 

Assume that things are “good enough” because “no 

one has complained.” 

 

Fail to stay current with new Library and technology 

trends and developments that may affect our position. 

 

Insist on doing things the old way after being informed 

of new policies and procedures. 

 

Reject new ideas without due consideration. 

 

Ignore available learning opportunities. 



 

 Do . . .  Don’t . . .  

8. Positive Attitude 
We are enthusiastic about our work and like 

to have fun. We are positive role models for 

one another and remember that we represent 

the Library and its mission in the community. 

Greet customers (including coworkers) every day. 

 

Actively support the Library’s programs and initiatives. 

 

Look for ways to make something work, not reasons 

why it can’t work. 

 

Bring concerns to the person who can do something 

about them in a respectful manner and in the proper 

setting. 

 

Demonstrate enjoyment of our jobs; smile! 

 

Strive to make using the library a pleasant and 

productive experience. 

 

Respect the workplace as a “no gossip zone.” 

 

Ignore customers or fail to greet them. 

 

Refuse to try something just because we might not be 

good at it. 

 

Allow unhappy moods to affect our working 

environment. 

 

Complain about coworkers or job in presence of public 

or in otherwise inappropriate settings and ways. 

 

Act as though customers are bothering or interrupting 

us. 

 

Gossip! 

9. Diversity 
We understand and are committed to the 

principles of diversity. We strive to 

understand the needs of all people in our 

community. We treat all people with courtesy 

and respect and are welcoming and 

approachable. We uphold the principles of 

intellectual freedom. 

Know that EVERYONE is our customer and treat ALL 

people with courtesy and respect. Enable all customers 

to easily access and enjoy our services. 

 

Understand and effectively explain the Library’s policies 

and procedures concerning intellectual freedom.  

 

Seek ways to help non-English-speaking people and 

people with reading or learning challenges use our 

Libraries and access our services. 

Be discourteous, make disparaging remarks or 

otherwise treat anyone with disrespect. Don’t pick and 

choose who we feel comfortable helping. 

 

Contradict Library’s policies and procedures on 

intellectual freedom. 

 


	A Agenda January 2013
	Consent Agenda Page
	B1 Minutes December 2012
	B2 December Payroll Benefits Vouchers
	Officers Report Page
	C1 November Dashboard
	Board Memo Nov Dashboard
	November Dashboard
	DASHBOARD

	Dashboard Definitions 20121226

	C2 December Financial Report
	C2a December Budget to Actual
	C3 2013 Legislation
	C4 UP Condominium Fees
	C5 PLA Webinar
	C5a ebook presentation pla pcls
	C6 Paul Allen Grant
	C7 Levy certification
	C8 Key Center
	C9 LJ Architectural Issue
	C10 Video Project Customer Stories
	Unfinished Business Page
	D Print Management System2
	New Business Page
	E1 Operational changes efficiencies 2012
	E1a Budget Intro
	E1b 2012 Efficiencies Consolidated
	E2 2013 Board Calendar of Work
	E3 Core Skills and Qualities Memo
	E3a skills-qualities-behaviors_001



